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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2007.

RESULTS

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$352 million
and profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of
approximately HK$78 million for the year ended 31 March 2007.
Gross margin significantly increased to 79.1 percent, compared
to 75.8 percent in last year and operating margin retained at

24.3 percent, same as last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the fiscal year of 2007, the Group extended further its
sales network in the Greater China market. The aim of building
the various brands under the Group in the growing market formed
the strong driving force of the Group. To attract new customer
groups, programs for brand image upgrade were delivered
through various marketing activities. New flagship store and
new house model were engaged to refresh the versatile image
of MOISELLE.

The three brands under the Group, MOISELLE, mademoiselle
and imaroon, had all established their sales channels in both
the China and Hong Kong markets. The Group had increased
resources allocated to support the enlarging network of
mademoiselle and imaroon in mainland China during the year
to enhance brand appeal to the target customers, with emphasis

on retail store concepts of unique vision and elegance.

The Group had continued to cultivate high end fashion product
research and development in order to offer the most favorable
products and valuable services to satisfy the demand of the

target customers.
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Chairman’s Statement

OUTLOOK

Newly introduced brands of mademoiselle and imaroon in China
will form stronger networking when number of stores continues
to grow in the coming seasons with locations in more important
cities in terms of retail consumption potential. The two lines of
retail business in China are expected to grow in a faster rate

and increased efficiency in the coming year.

The establishment of foreign investment commercial enterprises
in China entitles the Group to have high flexibility in formulating
the retail strategies in the tremendous potential market. New
flagship stores are planned to open in top tier shopping malls
located in first tier cities in China. The creative retail concept
together with the refined images of the Group’s brands is
expected to solidify opportunities in the vast retail market with

intensive competition.

The Group has engaged in exclusive distributorship for certain
overseas fashion brands, including COCCINELLE and REISS.
COCCINELLE is a long established Italian fashion brand with
specialties in fashion accessories of mainly handbags, shoes,
small leather products and fashion jewelleries. Embraced with
charming Italian design, refined workmanship, in-depth
knowledge in materials and extensive distribution network,
COCCINELLE achieves a prestigious brand position in its home

country and the international fashion accessories market.

The first retail outlet of COCCINELLE has been opened by the
Group in the IFC Mall in Hong Kong. The Group would expand
the sales network of COCCINELLE into mainland China in the
coming seasons and thereby provide extended product range to

its customers in the market.

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 &£ & & #
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REISS is a fashion brand from the United Kingdom carrying
menswear, womenswear and fashion accessories with strong
position in high street fashion market in its home country and
has expanded rapidly in the international market in the past few
years. The Group would open retail outlets of REISS in both
Hong Kong and mainland China in the coming seasons. The
move is going to bring new customer groups to and to foster the

competitiveness of the Group.

The Group has continued to explore business opportunities in
various markets and different kinds of businesses related to
lifestyle consumer products and would expect to develop possible
new business directions and strategies which would lead to

strengthening of the brand equity of the Group.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | take this opportunity to thank all our
shareholders and our fellow business partners, our management
and staff for their hard work and dedication to the Group, and
most importantly our prestigious customers for their support

during the year.

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 July 2007
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the year under review, the Group increased its networking
in the mainland China under all the three brands, MOISELLE,
mademoiselle and imaroon, of the Group. There were 67
MOISELLE stores (2006: 60) operating in the mainland China as
at 31 March 2007. 49 (2006: 43) out of the 67 (2006: 60) stores
were operated as consignment stores. The remaining ones were
operated by franchisees. The newly established stores positioned

at Changsha, Tianjin, Yiwu, Leqing, Zhangjiagang and Linfen.

During the year, the established network in the market in the
mainland China region continued to provide growth momentum
to the Group and to increase brand exposure in major and
second- to third-tiers cities. Various marketing activities in Hong
Kong and China regions with refreshed brand image contributed
to successfully approaching new customers and enlarging

customer base during the year.

The Group increased the network of the brands mademoiselle
and imaroon in the mainland China region during the year.
There were six (2006: two) mademoiselle stores and 15 (2006:
two) imaroon stores operating as at 31 March 2007. Newly
opened stores were located in cities of Suzhou, Chongging,
Kunming, Xiamen, Ningbo, Wenzhou, Chengdu, Urumqi,
Shanghai, etc. The management considered the multi-brand
strategies would bring synergy effects on the brand building and

increase potential in the China fashion retail market.

In Hong Kong, the Group operated 17 MOISELLE, 4
mademoiselle and 7 imaroon (2006: 17 MOISELLE, 3
mademoiselle and 5 imaroon) retail outlets as at 31 March 2007.
A flagship store of MOISELLE was opened in Russell Street,
Causeway Bay in December 2006 as part of the marketing
strategies on strengthening the new brand image. In order to
maintain high efficiency, individual performance of each retail
outlet was closely monitored with reference to continuous

increase in rental and other operating costs.

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 &£ & & #
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One (2006: one) store of MOISELLE was maintained during the
year in Macau. The improvement in the economy in Macau
provides new retail spaces for fashion brands targeting at high
end market. In addition, at 31 March 2007, the Group retained
in Taiwan market 6 MOISELLE stores (2006: 5), in Taipei City

and Taoyuan County.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s turnover increased by approximately 13% to
approximately HK$352,217,000 (2006: HK$311,617,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2007 as compared with 2006. As the
development of sales network in the PRC has generated improved
performance, the revenue of the region outside Hong Kong
increased by 32% to approximately HK$144,139,000 (2006:
HK$108,794,000) during the period under review. The
exploration of the markets outside Hong Kong had successfully
increased the segment turnover ratio from approximately 35%
of 2006 to approximately 41% for the year ended 31 March
2007.

The revenue earned from Hong Kong segment increased by
approximately 3% to HK$208,078,000 (2006: HK$202,823,000)
which was mainly attributable to the significant growth in sales
of mademoiselle brand in Hong Kong market during the financial

year under review.

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit margin
was approximately 79.1%, as compared to approximately 75.8%
of the previous year. The improvement in gross profit margin
was attributed by the merchandising strategies adopted in
introducing higher margin products with distinctive luxurious
design and unique details. Operating expenses for the year ended
31 March 2007 totaled approximately HK$198,227,000,
compared to approximately HK$164,311,000 for 2006, increased

by approximately 21%. The increase in operating expenses was
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Management Discussion and Analysis

in line with the expansion of sales network in the mainland
China, and major components of such increase came from rent,
staff cost, transportation and other selling and distribution costs.
The overall operational efficiency was, however, maintained and
the operating margin retained at 24.3% (2006: 24.3%).

The profit for the year ended 31 March 2007 was approximately
HK$78,254,000 (2006: HK$78,811,000), slightly decreased by
approximately HK$557,000, 1%.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year, the Group financed its operations with internal
generated cash flows. The Group adopts a prudent financial
policy such that it can meet the financial obligations when they
fall due and maintain a sufficient operating fund for the
development of the Group’s business. At the end of the year, the
Group’s aggregate fixed deposits and cash balances amounted
to approximately HK$90 million (2006: HK$93 million). As at
31 March 2007, the Group maintained aggregate composite
banking facilities of approximately HK$90 million (2006: HK$48
million) with various banks, of which approximately HK$2
million (2006: HK$3 million) were utilised.

The Group continues to enjoy healthy financial position. As at
31 March 2007, the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 4.3 times (2006: 5.3 times
(restated)) and the gearing ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings
and finance lease payables divided by shareholders’ equity) was
zero (2006: 1.7%).

Charge on assets

As at 31 March 2007, no (2006: carrying value of approximately
HK$82 million) investment properties and leasehold land and
buildings were pledged to secure mortgaged loans and banking

facilities granted to the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 &£ & & #
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2007, the Company had contingent liabilities in
relation to guarantees given to banks against facilities extended
to certain wholly owned subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$2 million (2006: guarantees to banks against facilities and
mortgaged loans of HK$7 million).

Employees

As at 31 March 2007, the Group employed 1,146 (2006: 1,010)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Salaries of
employees are maintained at competitive levels while bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, statutory and medical
insurance cover, training programmes, a share option scheme

and a share award scheme.
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Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 48, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over
30 years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading. Mr.
Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of Hongkong
by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in November 2001
and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business
Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in December
2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding Chinese Award
by the World Chinese Business Investment Foundation. Mr. Chan
holds an honorary doctorate degree in management from
Armstrong University in the United States. He was also awarded
2004 Associateship by The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries in January 2004. He is a fellow member
of Asian Knowledge Management Association. He is the husband
of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley and is the father of Mr. Chan Sze
Chun. Mr. Chan is the brother-in-law of Mr. Chui Hing Yee.

Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 48, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group. Ms. Tsui is the
brand creative director of the Group and is responsible for the
Group’s design and development functions, as well as
merchandising management and retail operations management.
She has over 30 years of experience in business administration
in various industries including garment manufacturing and
trading. Ms. Tsui is the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the
Company, and is the mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun. Ms. Tsui is
the sister of Mr. Chui Hing Yee.

Mr. CHUI Hing Yee, aged 56, is an executive director. He is one
of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for the
manufacturing operations of the Group in the PRC. Mr. Chui
has over 30 years of experience in the garment manufacturing
industry. Mr. Chui is the brother of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

and is the brother-in-law of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company.
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Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 29, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of

the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu Shirley.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 47, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a solicitor
and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of solicitors,
and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 19 years with a
focus in the conveyancing and commercial practice. She obtained
a bachelor’s degree in science from University of Wisconsin-
Madison as her first degree and then passed the Solicitors” Final
Examination and qualified as a solicitor. Ms. Yu has over ten
years’ experience in property investment and management. Ms.
Yu was appointed as a committee member of the Committee on
the Promotion of Civic Education in April 2005, as an adjudicator
of Immigration Tribunal in December 2006 and as a member of

the Antiquities Advisory Board in January 2007.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 46, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently the director of Light Engine Ltd. He has 16 years’
experience in international marketing and senior management
role in both the semiconductor and solid-state lighting industries.
Mr. Chu graduated from University of Essex with a bachelor’s
degree in science (electronic engineering) and received a master’s

degree in science from University of Westminster, London.

Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen, aged 53, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong is
currently the chief of finance systems development of Hospital
Authority. She has more than 30 years’ experience in
management consulting and systems implementation in both the
public and private sectors. Ms. Wong is a member of the Certified
Management Accountants Society of British Columbia in Canada
and holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Queen’s

University in Canada.
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Senior Management

Mr. WONG Hoi Yuen, Ike, aged 44, is the general manager of
the design and merchandising operations of the Group. He has
over 20 years of experience in fashion design and production

management. He joined the Group in January 1987.

Ms. PANG Lin, Elaine, aged 37, is the chief operating officer of
the Group, the company secretary and the qualified accountant
of the Company. Prior to joining the Group in June 2001, Ms.
Pang served as a finance manager and company secretary of a
company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. She has over 16 years of experience in the
audit, accounting and finance, administration and corporate
secretarial fields. She holds a bachelor of arts degree in
accountancy and a master’s degree in business administration
(fashion business) from Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
a bachelor’s degree in Chinese law from Peking University. She
is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries &

Administrators of the United Kingdom.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The company is committed to meeting statutory and regulatory
requirements and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The company has complied with the code provisions listed in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2007. The only
exception is that Mr. Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board
of directors (the “Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief
executive officer. The Board considers that the current
management structure ensures consistent leadership and optimal

efficiency for the operation of the company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the company by
the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2007.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises seven directors, four of which are executive
directors, namely Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman), Ms. Tsui How
Kiu, Shirley, Mr. Chui Hing Yee and Mr. Chan Sze Chun, and
three are independent non-executive directors, namely Ms. Yu
Yuk Ying, Vivian, Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk
Ying, Helen.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, four board meetings

were held. The attendance of each director is set out as follows:

i FE RO 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 4/4
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 4/4
Mr. Chui Hing Yee 4/4
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 4/4
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 4/4
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 4/4
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 3/4

The board of directors is responsible for the formulation of
business strategies for the group and the operational decision

making is delegated to the management team.

The relationship among members of the board is separately

disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.

TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors a confirmation of independence for the year
ended 31 March 2007 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive directors to be

independent.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent non-
executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian
(Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one executive
director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, two remuneration
committee meetings were held. The attendance of each

committee member is set out as follows:

o FE 52 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 2/2
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 272
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 0/2

The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration and the terms of
employment of the directors. During the year, the remuneration
committee has assessed the performance of the executive
directors, determined the discretionary bonuses of the executive
directors and approved the terms of non-executive directors’

appointments.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined
based on the estimated time spent by them on the company’s

matters.
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AUDITORS” REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid to the external auditors,

KPMG, are analysed as follows:
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The company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The audit committee
comprises three independent non-executive directors of the
company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr. Chu Chun
Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and reports to the
Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, two audit committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each committee member

is set out as follows:

i fE RS 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 1/2
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 2/2
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 1/2

During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
group, met and discussed with the external auditors, and raised
queries and obtained explanations from the management on
issues related to financial and operational control procedures of

the group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 &£ & & #



18

MOISELLE ##EwreEmaRad MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

1 8 B 36 i

Corporate Governance Report

m AR B 42

EXSEEEFANNEZRE  AEREEER
BFRHEEREMEFEZELATE  THE2E
RERFEASERAERRIEEREE +
PEE -HNBERREREBUTEEMEM
EEREBENERF

. EENRBEREE
e MBERNTEN K
. BIEANEERL -

BE-_ZTLHF=-ZRB=1+-HLEE ESg
EEEEHMB TERASE=ZEEIEXERRE
EHNAEENBERHNEZAENN  THHAE
ERAGEB2ERERINE - BREEHLE
R ESCERZEER BEAEEZEE
XBBRRE-ITNBREABEZHE -

EERAUKRBZER
ARAEBAL  RERAERRE
MB®E -

i
o
2
N

% B A & 9
FEERBMBBRERMBRR 2EETHRZ
EHRCHRENENEZBIRBMABRESE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 £ & & #

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of an internal control system which is essential for
effective and efficient operations of the group and is fundamental
in the thorough and regular evaluation of the nature and extent
of the risks to which the group is exposed. Internal control is
defined as a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the achievement of objectives in relation to the

following:

e Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
e Reliability of financial reporting; and

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Board, with the assistance
of the management, had conducted a review on the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the group, focusing on three
major business cycles of the group, and had been satisfied with
its effectiveness on monitoring and evaluating the risks. Based
on the results, the directors were dedicated to implement various
initiatives to further enhance the existing internal control system

alongside with the ongoing business development of the group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS
The company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of financial statements which give a true

and fair view.

STATEMENT BY THE AUDITORS
The statement of the auditors of the group regarding their
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the

independent auditor’s report on pages 31 and 32.
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Report of the Directors

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the group are the design, manufacture,
retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and accessories. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are

set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The analysis of geographical locations of the operations of the
company and its subsidiaries during the financial year is set out

in note 12 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the percentages of the
five largest customers combined and the five largest suppliers
combined were less than 30% of the group’s total turnover and

purchases, respectively.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The profit of the group for the year ended 31 March 2007 and
the state of the company’s and the group’s affairs as at that date

are set out in the financial statements on pages 33 to 114.
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

group for each of the last five financial years is set out in pages

115 and 116 of the annual report.
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$78,254,000 (2006: HK$78,811,000) has been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in note 27 to

the financial statements.

An interim dividend of Hong Kong 5 cents per share (2006:
Hong Kong 5 cents per share) was paid on 12 January 2007.
The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of Hong Kong 12 cents per share (2006: Hong Kong 12 cents
per share) in respect of the year ended 31 March 2007 to all
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
on 29 August 2007.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in fixed assets of the group during the
year ended 31 March 2007 are set out in note 13 to the financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the company during
the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

Shares were issued during the year on exercise of share options.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Bank loans and other borrowings of the group were settled during
the year ended 31 March 2007.

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the group as
at 31 March 2006 are set out in note 22 to the financial

statements.
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Report of the Directors

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to

a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000.

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its
PRC employees. The group is required to make contributions to
the retirement plans which are calculated based on certain
prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances
of its PRC employees. The group has no other material obligation
for the payment of pension benefits associated with such plans

beyond the annual contributions described above.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan have
chosen to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act. The subsidiary contributes at 6% of
the total salaries of participating employees that choose to
participate in the defined contribution scheme, deposited into
individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance.
Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged

to profit or loss when incurred.
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DIRECTORS
The directors during the year ended 31 March 2007 and up to

the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
Mr. Chui Hing Yee

Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian, Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and Ms.
Wong Shuk Ying, Helen will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting in accordance with article 87 of the company’s
articles of association and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.
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EERERTHAEBRESF 2ES DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

RZEELF=ZA=+—H AR EERK=E As at 31 March 2007, the interests and short positions of the
ZETBAEBRALAREABEZIE(ERRE directors and the chief executive of the company in the shares,
SREBEHRMN(TRSRPEMKR L) FXVE) 2 underlying shares and debentures of the company and its
R - HERODRESS  BEARXARER associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SRBEHRMEIRZAEFEZE MR Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in
% RNERBEBHREIZMAERAA ([EX the register kept by the company under section 352 of the SFO,
) #EFETRA(TETRBDAHF LT A or as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange
AESETESFRZNEETSRA ([RESFH]) of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
HEARBARBIZEEZEXRENT © Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing

Rules”) were as follows:

EEHSR REHzERER ERME
Name of director Beneficial interest in shares Nature of interest
BREAAN St 190,872,000 RNEl/ Rk (BaE(1) % (2))
Mr. Chan Yum Kit Corporate/Family (Notes (1) and (2))
BI91E &+ 190,872,000 DAl Rk (Bat(1) % (2)
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley Corporate/Family (Notes (1) and (2))
=M R 2t 30,000 18 A
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen Personal
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)
Notes:

(1) 190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”), Ms. Tsui
How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%,
46.7% and 6.6% respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will
therefore be deemed to be interested in the 190,000,000 shares

held by Super Result as corporate interest.

872,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments Limited
(“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially owned
by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively. Each
of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed to be interested

in the 872,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

(2)  Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to the other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed to be interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui will

be deemed to be interested in as family interest and vice versa.

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial personal
equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of the
group. Certain directors also have beneficial interests in non-
voting deferred shares practically carrying no rights to dividends
or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting

or to participate in any distribution or winding up in a subsidiary.

The directors of the company have been granted options under
the company’s share option scheme, details of which are set out

in the section “Share option scheme” below.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2007, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the company or any of its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which
was adopted on 25 January 2002 to enable the company to
grant options to selected participants as incentives and rewards
for their contribution to the group. The Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years from the date of its

adoption.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the company are authorised,
at their discretion, to offer full-time employees, executives or
officers, including the directors of the company or any of its
subsidiaries or any suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers
who will or have contributed to the group, options to subscribe
for such number of new shares of the company as the board of
directors of the company may determine. Upon acceptance of
the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the company by

way of consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value
of the shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant and the average closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date
on or after the date on which the option is granted as the
directors may determine in granting the option and expiring at
the close of business on such date as the directors may determine
in granting the option but in any event such period shall not
exceed ten years commencing on the date on which the option

is granted.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme may not exceed 28,000,000
shares, representing 9.93% of the issued share capital of the
company as at the date of this report. The number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme can be increased up to
30% of the shares of the company in issue from time to time,

subject to the approval of the company’s shareholders.

The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any twelve-month period up to and including
the date of grant may not exceed 1% of the shares of the
company in issue as at the date of grant, without prior approval

from the company’s shareholders.

Options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director in any twelve-month period up to and
including the date of grant may not exceed both 0.1% of the
company’s share capital and a value of HK$5 million as at the
date of grant, without prior approval from the company’s

shareholders.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the company had granted to certain
directors and employees of the company and other participant
options to subscribe for shares of the company. A summary of
the movements of the outstanding share options during the year
ended 31 March 2007 is set out below.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BREZE SEERE
Number of share options EY RS e
ZERTE BREKZ
En Market value I B
RZBEAE BA¥ R-B2tE 8k pershare  Market
mA-H R B /8% ZR=t-B fEE immediately value
G BEE  EBAE  lapsed 28  Exercise RILAH fTEE™  before the  per share
Balance  Granted Exercised cancelled Balance price Date Exercisable date of grant on exercise
RERAL asat  during the during the during the asat  per share of grant period  of options of options*
Eligible person 1 April 2006 year year year 31 March 2007 5t (B/RB/%) (BE/E/%) BT BT
HKS  (DDIMM/YYYY) (DDIMMIYYYY) HK$ HK$
22
Director
ks
Mr. Chan 2,100,000 - - - 2,100,000 1.15 20412002 23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
frrt
Ms. Tsui 2,100,000 - - - 2,100,000 1.15 20412002 23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
hEE
Chui Hing Yee 500,000 - - - 500,000 1.15 20412002 23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
RE&
Chan Sze Chun 900,000 - - - 900,000 1.15 2042002 23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
RIg
Yu Yuk Ying, 100,000 - - - 100,000 1.15 20412002 23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
Vivian
FEANMER A
Continuous contract 100,000 - 80,000 - 20,000 1.15 2/4/2002 2/4/2003 to 1/4/2012 1.14 2.1
employees in aggregate
REGEEE
Suppliers of 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.15 20412002 23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
services in
aggregate
6,000,000 - 80,000 - 5,920,000
O REEBRERTEAARAQAIDEBRR ZME *  being the weighted average closing price of the company’s ordinary

FU T E

MRATMES » AAF - HERLAF - HELQF
FRAEAMBAAREBEE-_ZSTLF=A=1+—
BEFEHMEFEREM - MELEETMRHEE
BERRACEERFTETHAERFEE 26
BERBTN\B2FZIBERBERQFREM
Htt i ABBz2ROIESMERAE -

shares immediately preceding the dates on which the options were

exercised.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2007 was the company, any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors or the chief executive of the company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the company or any other body corporate.
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BERBMEGRAFEBMZREFE 2B TMA
B BRAQAAEBERFETHAEZN U
TRERAATARDAEERD FEEERE
BERBEHROEXVBANERARA ZRZ IR

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2007, the interests or short positions of the
following shareholders, other than the directors and the chief
executive of the company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the company which have been disclosed to the company

pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the register

- kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO:

BEBEGE2I

BBTRAZ

BMOBE DL

Approximate

percentage of

HRRMDEH aggregate

Aggregate long interests to

BRRER position in total issued

Name of shareholder shares share capital
Super Result 190,000,000 67.37% (Htzt1)
(Note 1)
IXIS Asset Management Asia Ltd 28,098,000 9.96% (ffit2)
(Note 2)
Allianz SE 17,155,000 6.08% (H1E3)
(Note 3)
Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschaft 17,155,000 6.08% (Mf#E3)
(Note 3)
Veer Palthe Voute NV 17,155,000 6.08% (M1 it 4)
(Note 4)
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1. SuperResultZ RATIHBREE ~ hxt+ Rk
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2. Ixis Asset Management Asia LtdJi L &% & & 12
2 810 ¥ 528,098,000 Ik 17 °

3. Allianz SEF Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschafti®
i® 7 Veer Palthe Voute NVA BI B E B =~
81.1%% 100.0%% IR & &= M % 17 & M Veer
Palthe Voute NVFT #5758 Z 17,155,000 B 1 #
EEER -

4.  Veer Palthe Voute NVII LR E KB 2 5 H #F
B 17,155,00008% B% 12 °
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Report of the Directors

Notes:

1. The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by Mr.
Chan, Ms. Tsui and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%, 46.7% and
6.6% respectively.

2. The capacity of IXIS Asset Management Asia Ltd in holding the

28,098,000 shares was an investment manager.

3. Allianz SE and Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschaft were deemed to
be interested in the 17,155,000 shares held by Veer Palthe Voute
NV by virtue of indirect controlling interest of 81.1% and 100.0%
respectively in Veer Palthe Voute NV.

4. The capacity of Veer Palthe Voute NV in holding the 17,155,000

shares was an investment manager.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the
chief executive of the company whose interests are set out in
the sections “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in
securities” and “Share option scheme” above, no person was
recorded in the register kept by the company under section 336
of the SFO as having an interest or a short position in the shares

or underlying shares of the company as at 31 March 2007.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the company, any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
in which a director of the company had a material interest,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company’s
articles of association or the law in the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during

the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the company

and within the knowledge of the directors of the company.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution of the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the company is to be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 July 2007
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the company”) set out
on pages 33 to 114, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 March 2007, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
group as at 31 March 2007 and of the group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

16 July 2007
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BE-ZZTLF=A=+—HILFE (LLB¥FIR) For the year ended 31 March 2007 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EELHF —EERE
2007 2006
MY 52X Fr Fr
Note $/000 $'000
i Turnover 3 352,217 311,617
i & KA Cost of sales (73,689) (75,499)
E A Gross profit 278,528 236,118
H g A Other revenue 4 4,673 3,438
H A W 55 % 28 Other net income 4 485 469
HE k2 HKAR Selling and distribution costs (150,016) (124,586)
THRREEMEERX Administrative and other operating expenses (48,211) (39,725)
&R F Profit from operations 85,459 75,714
B & KA Finance costs 5(a) (365) (251)
THHEBZMHE Net valuation gains/(losses) on 13
e, (BHE) F8E
—THEEEY — land and buildings (55) 6,372
- REME ~ investment properties 3,030 3,600
bR B AT & A Profit before taxation 5 88,069 85,435
PR 15 Bt Income tax 6(a) (9,815) (6,624)
F A5 A Profit for the year 9,27 78,254 78,811
FE S & 2 F) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
BERRZ of the company attributable to
rEERE the year: 10
FREER KN Z Interim dividend declared and paid
hE AR R during the year 14,098 14,095
FEAREFZEDIRZ Final dividend proposed after the
xR B iR B balance sheet date 33,844 33,834
47,942 47,929
BREF Earnings per share 11
EX Basic $0.28 $0.28
g Diluted $0.27 $0.28

FAZTUHEZHEBARATBHRR 2 -2 -

The notes on pages 40 to 114 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
R=ZFTZFLHFE=A=+—A8 (LLE%FIR) At 31 March 2007 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—EELHF —ETREF
2007 2006
(&351)
(restated)
Bt & Tr Fr T T
Note $’000 $’000 $'000 $/000
ERBEE Non-current assets
EEE Fixed assets
- REME — Investment properties 13 17,130 14,100
—HEEEE — Other fixed assets 13 165,334 121,544
182,464 135,644
Hth & E Other assets 15 13,558 12,118
BEEMGHEE Deferred tax assets 25(b) 4,112 4,617
200,134 152,379
mEEE Current assets
Hith & 50 & E Other financial assets 16 4,359 4,396
FE Inventories 17 69,617 54,383
JE UL BR A K E 4 fE We 5k Trade and other receivables 18 41,920 36,619
A EETIE Tax recoverable 25(a) 1,695 1,503
RERBAEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 19 90,306 92,941
207,897 189,842
mE 8 E Current liabilities
JE T BR X K Ho fh J& 9 5k Trade and other payables 21 43,064 31,331
RITEARBEX Bank loans and overdrafts 22 - 1,687
FE 51 £t 18 Tax payable 25(a) 5,446 2,551
48,510 35,569
RBEEFE Net current assets 159,387 154,273
EERRBEE Total assets less current
HB{E liabilities 359,521 306,652
ERBAE Non-current liabilities
RITER Bank loans 22 - 3,415
EEMEHEBE Deferred tax liabilities 25(b) 7,967 2,531
7,967 5,946
EEFHE NET ASSETS 351,554 300,706
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 3§

R=ZZTZFLF=A=+—A8 (LLEFIR) At 31 March 2007 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EELHF ZTTRF
2007 2006
(&%)
(restated)
Bt 3 Tr Fr T T
Note $’000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BEAXRRR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
% 7R Share capital 26 2,821 2,820
& Reserves 27 348,733 297,886
B RS TOTAL EQUITY 351,554 300,706
EEgR T F L AT NBRELFFAE Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
e 16 July 2007.

Chan Yum Kit

FAZTUHEZHEBATBHRR 2 —BD -

®RILE

)
)
) = % Directors
)
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley )

The notes on pages 40 to 114 form part of these financial
statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 &£ E & #



MOISELLE ##EreEmaRAs MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HrEAEE
Balance Sheet
R=ZFTZFLHFE=A=+—A8 (LLE%FIR) At 31 March 2007 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—ETLHF 2T RHF
2007 2006
Bt &E T T T+ T
Note $’000 $’000 $'000 $/000
(RBEE Non-current assets
iNGREINGIPA X Interest in subsidiaries 14 138,658 61,672
REBEE Current assets
HmemEE Other financial assets 16 4,359 4,396
FE U BR 3X & H fh B Ue 5k Trade and other receivables 18 20,465 142,140
RERAEEED Cash and cash equivalents 19 5,409 5,090
30,233 151,626
nEAaE Current liabilities
FE 1< Bt B 2 7] 5k I8 Amounts due to subsidiaries 20 - 56,358
JE - BR 5K & H 4 € - 58 Trade and other payables 1,618 1,576
1,618 57,934
nBEEFE Net current assets 28,615 93,692
EEFE NET ASSETS 167,273 155,364
EARREE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
P 7R Share capital 26 2,821 2,820
i 1 Reserves 27 164,452 152,544
4R R = TOTAL EQUITY 167,273 155,364

EZeR TR LFLATNARELFATE

H oo

BR XA
Chan Yum Kit

FAZ 4B ZMEFBATBRR 2 —2H °
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"R
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

)
)
)
)
)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
16 July 2007.

% E Directors

The notes on pages 40 to 114 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-ZZTLHE=F=1+—H 1L E (LB%5R) For the year ended 31 March 2007 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—2BtLE —BEAE
2007 2006
MY = Fr Fr
Note $/000 $'000
REOA—BZEREE Total equity at 1 April 300,706 260,435
EERERER Net income recognised directly in equity:
ZWAEE
BmERENE AR Exchange differences on translation of
BB CERER financial statements of PRC subsidiaries 27 1,786 323
BEBRZ T R Surplus on revaluation of land and
BREYMZEMRRBR buildings held for own use,
ENBRELERSH net of deferred tax 27 18,648 8,875
BEEREEERRZ Net income for the year recognised
FRWANFHE directly in equity 20,434 9,198
N EEF A Net profit for the year 27 78,254 78,811
EREBRIBAR Total recognised income and expense
ez for the year 98,688 88,009
REEEIKL Dividends declared or approved
%2 R B during the year 10 (47,932) (47,911
EARGHEE Movements in equity arising from
ZEREE capital transactions:
1R 15 B8 A% 12 5t &) Shares issued under share
BT 2R D option scheme 26 1 2
% 17 % (B H & Share premium received 27 91 171
HERRETERARS Net increase in shareholders’ equity
PRE# 2 IR #E = arising from capital transactions with
¥ 0 % FE shareholders 92 173
R=B=+t—-Bx2 Total equity at 31 March
BEEBE 351,554 300,706

FAZRI4ECHEBAB KRR — D °

The notes on pages 40 to 114 form part of these financial
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38 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE-ZTLE=ZHA=+—HLLEE (LB%%IR) For the year ended 31 March 2007 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EETLHE —TITRF
2007 2006
(&%)
(restated)
B =% T T T T
Note $/000 $’000 $'000 $000
RETEB Operating activities
B % Al = Al Profit before taxation 88,069 85,435
HEIER Adjustments for:
—THREEY ~ Net valuation gains on land
REBREMEZ and buildings and investment
fhEKEFE properties (2,975) (9,972)
- E -~ Depreciation 12,934 10,397
- MERX — Interest expense 365 251
— F B WA — Interest income (2,712) 2,111)
—~HERBETEEEZERE - Loss on sale of fixed assets 569 101
—BEEHFDELRRK — Net realised and unrealised
REBHERE losses/(gains) on trading
(=) FHE securities 39 (70)
—EXEE — Foreign exchange loss 1,414 322
EEETEDA Operating profit before
ZREEREF changes in working
capital 97,703 84,353
H fth & E 1 0 Increase in other assets (1,440) (5,092)
FEEm Increase in inventories (15,234) (18,990)
JE W BR 5K K2 H 4 € 5K Increase in trade and other
Z 3 receivables (5,266) (1,492)
J& - BR 5K R H 4 € 1V X Increase in trade and other
Z ¥ m payables 11,733 6,323
REXBELEZRE Cash generated from
operations 87,496 65,102
(Bf) /RBEFE Tax (paid)/refunded
- EfNEENEHR — Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (1,309) (1,050)
—RM@EFENEH — Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded - 161
—BEfNHRENIE — PRC tax paid (6,211) (7,284)
— R B IR — PRC tax refunded - 2,288
REFHREZ Net cash generated from operating
ReFHgeE activities carried forward 79,976 59,217
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BE-ZZTLHE=F=1+—H 1L E (LB%5R) For the year ended 31 March 2007 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EELF —TERF
2007 2006
(&Z7%)
(restated)
Bt 51 T T T T
Note $’000 $’000 $/000 $'000
AR EE B TS Net cash generated from operating
BEFE activities brought forward 79,976 59,217
REREH Investing activities
BARTEEENK Payment for purchase of
fixed assets (31,982) (14,390)
H & & E § 3 Proceeds from sale of
P18 K3 fixed assets - 640
AR 5: §‘J H & Payment for purchase of
& held-to-maturity securities (42,713) (24,884)
HEINHES Proceeds received upon maturity
R B HI B 2 e EX of held-to-maturity securities
Z B3R 42,900 21,000
=R, Interest received 2,491 2,050
REBFBFRAZ Net cash used in investing
R FH activities (29,304) (15,584)
MEED Financing activities
BERITER Repayment of bank loans (3,756) (385)
1R 15 B AR 5T 8 B 1T Proceeds from shares issued
W& 1 2 P15 5K 1A under share option scheme 92 173
EERRAPS, Interest paid (365) (251)
BERKRE Dividends paid (47,932) (47,911)
BMETEHFTAE S FE Net cash used in financing activities (51,961) (48,374)
BeREESZEEYWHL Net decrease in cash and cash
P equivalents (1,289) (4,741)
REB-—BZRER Cash and cash equivalents
BeZEY at 1 April 91,595 96,336
R=A=+t—-HZ Cash and cash equivalents
BeREEZEEY at 31 March 19 90,306 91,595
FEHFRERF Major non-cash transaction:
FR > ANEBELL295000T AMBEY RS FE— During the year, the group traded-in a motor vehicle for $295,000
H(ZEZEARF &) o (2006: $Nil).

BAZT4ECHEABATBHRR 2 —D - The notes on pages 40 to 114 form part of these financial

statements.
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40 Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FEEHHBR
(a) EHIEH

AU BBREEREBEFMASHE
fiff B ER 2 (B BB RS EL) (It
BBEEMAERZER(ES B R
HEA) (BEBEFEARRE) -
EBAREFTRAREB (D AEHD
CHRBRERR - AUBRRIGTS
(BEBBEXSZMAERAE (BRI
HELITRAD ZBARERE - LT
RAEERANTIESHRRME -

EEEGMASERME THERK
BANCEBMBRSER) - XRA
EERAQRAZASTHBERSIT
HEFHRM - HWE2EIRAETH
BREBETZETHB  ANRERZ
ERASEEACBRRMEF S TR
REFMRMREZEYBERERRAZE

*ﬁl. o
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INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS

LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the group
and the company. Note 2 provides information on the
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial

statements.
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1. TESHEX (&)

(b)

MBEBRRZ2EREE
BE-_ZEZtH=ZA=1+—HLEE
CHREMBERREERAAARELKE
AEFHEBAIAEEF]) -

RAVBHRERMERAZAEEERE
ERAE  HETHEETIURFEST
BRMTXZEFTHERMERE) BRI :

- REWME(RHE 1) ;

- HMHEESLHRESEY 25+
WREZEY 2 AFEEENAEE
MBI HAE  BEEEHEER
EAmMEAE (EMIFIOR
1(g) &

- BAREEEZESFRE (RN
1(d) e

ERESHE(EBUBHREER) 2
MBERRTEEEEEEHE - (A&
RBHR MZEHE  HARERE
FERR AR RZEERE
B WARHAXEHE ZEhHTR
FRRBRRNDBREBEILRREEEM
ERZEBRATHIEEE 2R EHEM
AEDEEMMEL  FEERBRE
EEFBEAREREMRREMSEHZ
EERBRBZREAEMELMGES 22
E -BRBEFIAEENRMETEHT -

AEBEAMRPAEATREBRKRE
HEPfh - Bt 2B UREEE
B ARBEFENEHER SRR -
MBZEE AT 2BIXEERRN
BEE AEEZEREDRRAEH
B o

HOLDINGS LIMITED #zmEm&EsrR2sd MOISELLE

S 85 i 2% M Rk

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2007 comprise the company and its

subsidiaries (together referred to as the “group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value

as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— investment properties (see note 1(e));

—  other leasehold land and buildings, for which the
fair values cannot be measured separately at the
inception of the lease and the entire lease is
classified as a finance lease (see notes 1(f) and
1(g)); and

- investments in securities held for trading (see note
1(d)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.
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42  Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. TEGFTHE (#) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) KMIEBR A (c) Subsidiaries

MEARRERAEEHZFNAA - Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group.
EXAEEERIEWE QAN MBHN Control exists when the group has the power to govern
REBEK > WHEWKETFEHEEF the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
wo BRRESEE -BETTEN to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
BEMERERGLREEZLHEENE control, potential voting rights that presently are
e exercisable are taken into account.

EERMBARMNKRESBEHER An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
BHEZEFKEAPIEESRS UK consolidated financial statements from the date that
BRPESTE - EEREERER control commences until the date that control ceases.
HNEBRFRZREEENEMR Intra-group balances and transactions and any
SRR HWERESSUHBHRERE unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
2HIEE SEEABIZAELENR are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
210 & 18 BV 3K 85 75 A B R 2 3R 0% A AR financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
B BEFEEIRRIERBEETRE intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
BEEECHBERNE - way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.

ARBEEEERMARHEARN In the company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
RE RERABEEAREBSE (R subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
BEEE1(h) B AR ° note 1(h)).

(d REBRRAZSZ 2HMERE (d) Other investments in debt and equity securities
AEBRADAREBRRAES IR The group’s and the company’s policies for investments
E(RMBARZRERI) 2BEM in debt and equity securities, other than investments
T o in subsidiaries, are as follows:
REFEERS2RENDIEAR Investments in securities held for trading are classified
EERDTERAFEIER REEE as current assets and are initially stated at fair value.
B AFEDEHSE BARELEZ At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured,
EAREREBEETINIEZRER with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in

profit or loss.

FEBR/IEAQARNBEERAELIR Dated debt securities that the group and/or the
EREEEEHBcEHERR SN D company have the positive ability and intention to
BEAREEINHEES HEZIHRE hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
SNERAFENMRZEEANREESR securities. Held-to-maturity securities are initially
BRER - HEZ  AIREEHREHE recognised in the balance sheet at fair value plus
RAMBRBEBEMER (RME1H) ° transaction costs. Subsequently, they are stated in the

balance sheet at amortised cost less impairment losses
(see note 1(h)).

ZEREDRAEBR R ADEE Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
HBE HEZSEREINERBRZ the group and/or the company commits to purchase/
AR MBRER - sell the investments or they expire.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
1(g)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently

undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet
at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in
fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted

for as described in note 1(q)(ii).

When the group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted
for as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for
as if it were held under a finance lease (see note 1(g)),
and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are

accounted for as described in note 1(g).
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44 Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. FESHEX (&)

®)

HtEE&E
RESEHERFAE 2R T 2
BEY MZELIHREEY2HE
BEzAFEAEREERAKE Y
e BRENTHRRBELEHEER
MeE1REER  AIREEEER
LE/MESEIE  DREGMEH2ZA
FEBRERZAFFINE -

EfEEER-—REBREEHET
BREZSEECRESHENEER
RAAFEBEEZEBELESERRE -

EEEEHMBERRRARRER
ERREBEREERERRNIKR (R
Hf&E 1(h)

EMBFFERNMEREENES -
REBRARBERE - BT HERHIN

- WMREHBEMLEM MEEEN
BAEEEARZEEEEREE
BRI ARENEE  ESEE
mRIEX R

- WRUEFEEE-BEENER
BHaEEaXRIIX  BEHRE

HRHE FEBRABE R
ﬁ o
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Other fixed assets

The land held for own use under operating leases and
buildings thereon, where the fair values of the
leasehold interest in the land and buildings cannot be
measured separately at the inception of the lease and
the building is not clearly held under an operating
lease (see note 1(g)) are stated in the balance sheet at
their revalued amount, being their fair value at the
date of the revaluation less any subsequent

accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does
not differ materially from that which would be

determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.

Other items of fixed assets are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note 1(h)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held
for own use are generally dealt with in reserves. The

only exceptions are as follows:

—  when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the

revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a deficit
on revaluation in respect of that same asset had

previously been charged to profit or loss.
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FEEHEE (&)

(®)

HtEE&E (&)
BEIHEERETEERBEMELENE
BUHERSEFHEERENRESHE
ZENEREE  IRBREIILEES
REERXER ETAEEANEGR
BREREGREBEAREER -

ETEEEHENTERERAERER
H 78 51 7] A & PR O 8 H AR AN S Al ERL
B RBEE(NE) r FELTZEW
T :

- AREELHEEEYRES
ZAREmBRRE T AER (B
ERBHES AT F) 2BEET
EFE -

- HEWEEE
Leasehold improvements
- IXELKERHEW
Plant and machinery
- BERAREEXRE
Furniture and fixtures
- EBERERBAEER
Computer and office equipment
- A=

Motor vehicles

EEEEERBZ2TARABIBEFEME
RERK  BEZRAHGEEETE
BOZBREBEESE  BEINS
THHERE BEZAEAFHR
HREBKEE(WE)ASERT -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Other fixed assets (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed assets are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the

revaluation reserve to retained profits.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of fixed assets, less their estimated

residual value, if any, using the straight line method

over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
terms of lease and their estimated useful lives,

being 50 years from the date of completion.

EEREZEEH (UREEZERE)

Over the shorter of 5 years and the period of the lease
+ &

10 years

EE+H

5 to 10 years

=EREF

3 to 5 years

hEF

5 years

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful

life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are

reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FTESFBE (&)

(9) HEEE
HEZHEEAEER -—RXFZH—F
JIHEXRE B TEAMNTREEN
HEANEBARIAIN —RIIREM
EABEEE BE-BRZHEREAES
HEDERZZFZAEMAERZ
ZH2EREER °

() BEFAEEHEEZTH
FEERBEESAEZEE M
Hep@ A0 Rk RESER S
VEBREAKE2HAEDNTESR
MEHRE -FEEBENBOE
BREERANGE2HED S ER
REBE - MELT FI5

- HRBEEHEFHAE2ZME
TETHERENEZE
% ARERNNEZEED
BRAREME MBS
REWE  AREREEE
FEARRKEIE) &

- RELLEHASEFEAERZZL
o MEAFEREEZERE
FEEZCBFREEEN
He2XFEIMATE  BH
THARBEREEASEEAA
ROEERBFERELE
HEFBRAFD - BEM
5 HELERZKBALRE
BERTIEEZRKRB
REMABAZEERE 2K
B e
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series

of transactions, is or contains a lease if the group

determines that the arrangement conveys a right to

use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of

time in return for a payment or a series of payments.

Such a determination is made based on an evaluation

of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless

of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the group
Assets that are held by group under leases which
transfer to the group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the group are classified as operating
leases, with the following exceptions:

property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property is classified as an
investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment
property, is accounted for as if held under a

finance lease (see note 1(e)); and

land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the lease
is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Leased assets (continued)

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment
property (see note 1(e)).

(h) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, any impairment loss is determined and

recognised as follows:

—  For current receivables that are carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset
where the effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for current receivables are
reversed if in a subsequent period the

amount of the impairment loss decreases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. EEEHEE (&)
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(if)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity

securities and other receivables (continued)

—  For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect

of discounting is material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

- fixed assets (other than properties carried at

revalued amounts); and

- investments in subsidiaries.
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(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. ETESFTTHEX (&) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(hy EERE (&) (h) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) H & E i E (F) (i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
MRBERERESTR  ES M If any such indication exists, the asset’s
ZEEMNA Y E HE - recoverable amount is estimated.
- FEATWEHE Calculation of recoverable amount

EENTWREHBEUAREE
FENEAEEMEPHER
SHER/E - EAGEEMRE
B SEARBAFTER
BhEFARREREFTEE
BE ZiEXERRRM
S ERMFENEEERE
EMZEENBAERR - W
REEFMEENREESRAR
REFRBUREMEERE
ENRERA - BINER
EXERERANBNEES
B (BNREEEEN) REE
G QER &

- BRBEBE
HEBEREEERNMMNE
MRETELEEMNIRE S
BRATKRESHER  RER
RPER - HRESELEEM
BRZHBERBRE  SRLAH
DEURDZEN (R-—AE
) WEEZREEHE  HRE
HNEEREEFASRDER
REXSHNDFERESEK
AYEEREE (FREEE)

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 &£ E & #



MOISELLE #smEmxeEERA7 MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

S 85 i 2% M Rk

50  Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. TEEHBE (&) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(hy EERE (&) (h) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Hfth & 2wl E (E) (i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
- HEBBEEQE - Reversals of impairment losses
fisd & A LAEE & W Wk @ BL B Y An impairment loss is reversed if there has
R BREBRNEL  EE been a favourable change in the estimates
HEEREBEBRERD - fTE used to determine the recoverable amount.
EIHWREBEUABRRIEE A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
EERIBEBEMESE to the asset’s carrying amount that would
ENEEREESERMR - have been determined had no impairment
EOMREBEERIAED loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
MEEARFTABRRE of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
(i) BE (i) Inventories
FEURARAIASZRZFEMEPHR Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
REEAR - realisable value.
AL EELRHEFTE PR B Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula
BRBRA MIRARBEFEEE and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
BRI BMERBERNEMRA o conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

SR FEHEABEXRBBERMNMG Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
AEERETREERFEEMZTNMG the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
AAREABAEBZH - of completion and the estimated costs necessary to

make the sale.

FHEFENRESHEEHERAE When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
EANPERAERASE - FEHSE those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
MREATSRFERFENFTERSE period in which the related revenue is recognised.
HEHBEREIEENBEANRER S The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
X o FENEMREED 22 5 realisable value and all losses of inventories are
EHRENNBAERABERBEIIEX recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
EHNEFEEHBERD - or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any

write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(k)

U]

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note
1(h)), except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts (see note 1(h)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
cost and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the

effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which

case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow

statement.
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INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1.

LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Employee benefits

(i)

(if)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

Share-based payment

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the binomial lattice model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into

account the probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n) Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Share-based payment (continued)

(iii)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss
for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to

retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the group demonstrably commits itself
to terminate employment or to provide benefits
as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a
detailed formal plan which is without realistic

possibility of withdrawal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1.

LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

(0)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the
profit or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised directly in equity, in which
case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which
the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0) Income tax (continued)

(iii) (continued)

(iv)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not

discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits

will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the company or the group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following

additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the company or the group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

liability

the asset and settle the

simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(0) Income tax (continued)

(iv)

(continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary to the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(i)

(if)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with note
1(p)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount
of that claim on the group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated

depreciation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the group or
the company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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1.

LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that all the economic benefits

will flow to the group and the revenue and costs, if

applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
to the customers which is taken to be the point
in time when the customers have accepted the
goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any

trade discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of

the aggregate net lease payments receivable.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

effective interest method.

Service fee income
Service fee income is recognised when the related
services are rendered and the amount receivable

can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit

or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised directly in a separate

component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
equity which relate to that foreign operation is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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1.

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS

60 Notes to the Financial Statements

LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party

is considered to be related to the group if:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the group or exercise significant influence over
the group in making financial and operating

policy decisions, or has joint control over the

group;

the group and the party are subject to common

control;

the party is an associate of the group or a joint

venture in which the group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the group or the group’s parent, or
a close family member of such an individual, or
is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such

individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the group or of

any entity that is a related party of the group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that individual in their dealings with

the entity.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the group
that is engaged in providing products or services within
a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that
are different from those of other segments.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to that segment. For example, segment
assets may include inventories, trade receivables and
fixed assets. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of
the consolidation process, except to the extent that
such intra-group balances and transactions are between
group entities within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those available to

other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used

for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings,

tax balances, corporate and financing expenses.

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs

that are first effective or available for early adoption for

the current accounting period of the group.
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LIMITED

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Except for the amendments to HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement: Financial
guarantee contracts”, the adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs did not result in significant changes in the group’s
accounting policies applied in these financial statements
for the years presented. The group has not applied any
new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period (see note 35).

The effect of the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 39
is set out below.

Financial guarantees issued (Amendments to HKAS 39,
Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement:
Financial guarantee contracts)

In prior years, financial guarantees issued by the group
were disclosed as contingent liabilities in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets”. No provisions were made in respect of these
guarantees unless it was more likely than not that the
guarantee would be called upon.

With effect from 1 April 2006, in order to comply with the
amendments to HKAS 39 in respect of financial guarantee
contracts, the group has changed its accounting policy for
financial guarantees issued. Under the new policy, financial
guarantees issued are accounted for as financial liabilities
under HKAS 39 and measured initially at fair value, where
the fair value can be reliably measured. Subsequently, they
are measured at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation, and the amount
of the provision, if any, that should be recognised in
accordance with HKAS 37. Further details of the new policy
are set out in note 1(p)(i).

The new accounting policy has no impact on the opening
retained profits nor the profit or loss for the periods
presented due to the fact that the fair value of the financial
guarantees issued by the group cannot be reliably measured.
Accordingly, the group has not recognised any deferred
income in respect of the financial guarantees issued. Details
of the financial guarantees currently issued by the group
are set out in note 30.



MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED #smEpsmsRas MOISELLE

EEH

ARBZEBEBRREER - A5EHZ
FTEXEBAR  RE - ZERHABESE

BR & % B & o

EXTFECEEmBREZ2FRE  TEHEE
BEF - LEHNBREMEZEFTN -

S 85 i 2% M Rk

Notes to the Financial Statements 63

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3  TURNOVER
The principal activity of the company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the group are the design,
manufacture, retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and

accessories.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods sold,

excluding value added tax and net of trade discounts.

Hi AR H &= %5 4. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME
—EE2LHF —EERE
2007 2006
T T
$'000 $'000
H g A Other revenue
RITHFERZHE KA Interest income from bank deposits 2,526 2,030
KEMEH LS Gross rental from investment properties 725 722
Bk % & Mg A Service fee income 420 420
2 Y& Compensation received 380 -
BEIHBHFZ Interest income from
RSN ON held-to-maturity securities 186 81
I A Sundry income 436 185
4,673 3,438
H by &= 8 48 Other net income
BEEBHLEERAR Realised and unrealised (losses)/gains
RAER (BFE) ki on trading securities (39 70
HEBTETEEZEIEFEHE Netloss on sale of fixed assets (569) (101)
b 5 U= F Net exchange gain 1,093 500
485 469
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INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

LIMITED

—EELHF —EERE
2007 2006
T T
$7000 $'000
(@) BEKAN : (@) Finance costs:
BT E RF A Interest on bank advances 365 251
by EIRA(TNBEFEESE (b) Staff costs (excluding directors’
e (Fra7)) remuneration (note 7)):
FE M ZRK Contribution to defined contribution
FTE 2 H# & retirement plan 2,274 1,803
e ILERKHEMETR Salaries, wages and other benefits 54,211 47,546
56,485 49,349
(c0 EMIEF : (c) Other items:
% BRT BN & Auditors’ remuneration
-~ ZERH% — audit services 1,008 893
—HE R — other services - 76
e Depreciation 12,934 10,397
JE W BR TR 2 BB S 18 Impairment losses on trade receivables 1,201 -
T RBEEY ZKE Operating lease charges in respect of
HEER land and buildings
- HEAEMNRK — minimum lease payments 83,474 73,305
- HZEHE ~ contingent rentals 8,234 4,210
B EY XM Mk Rentals receivable from investment
B # [ % 59,000 7T properties less direct outgoings of
(ZZEZTRF 50,0007%) $59,000 (2006: $50,000) (666) (672)
FE KA (M & 17(0b)) Cost of inventories? (note 17(b)) 73,689 75,499
: FE KA F 18,005,000 (ZEENE 9 Cost of inventories includes $18,005,000 (2006:

16,168,0007t) * BIEEIRAE - IER
KEHEBH FHEEEIERLALRE
A RIH RS M EES (b S B AR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 £ & % #

$16,168,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and

operating lease charges, which amount is also included in

the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or

in note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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INCOME TAX
STATEMENT

(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

represents:

“ETtE —FBAF
2007 2006
T Tr
$7000 $'000
RNEBIIE - BBFSH  Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
REERE Provision for the year 2,241 352
NEEEBRETR Under/(over)-provision in respect
(3@ F) of prior years 158 (25)
2,399 327
AHBIE - & Current tax - PRC
rKEERE Provision for the year 7,675 5,879
NEFEREE Over-provision in respect
B 7 of prior years - (55)
7,675 5,824
iE I PR 5 % Deferred tax
ERMEREY Origination and reversal of temporary
EEREM differences (259) 473
9,815 6,624

EBNEBHRDUREE 2 ERB
A B RI75%U(Z B E N F
17.5%) fEH B - P EAR L ME
(THE] RENELAR 2B ETZ
RS AL REEEA 2 RBITH =T

P

H o

RZZEZLtEF=Z/ fERJITHEE
BEBEBER —XFTEWBAREE
ZETEHEHRHEN AEBLEE
BEMNBIME MEEBECEHME
ARBERARAPUARTEED - R
RBARMBHRERELFINERE -

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
17.5% (2006: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
for the year. Taxation for the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) and overseas subsidiaries is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
tax jurisdictions.

In March 2007, the district State Tax Bureau of Shenzhen
of PRC raised enquiries on certain aspects of the operations
of a PRC subsidiary. No additional tax assessments have
been received by the group and the management has
reviewed the relevant tax rules and regulations and industry
practice and considers that no additional provision is
required to be made in the financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 &£ E & #
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6. REBRBRARZAEBHR (&) 6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)
(b) MEXHESHEANZBEARETE (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
2 %R profit at applicable tax rates:
—EELF ZEEANE
2007 2006
T T
$/000 $000
B % Al &= Al Profit before tax 88,069 85,435
RIEMB@BEEA#EE  Notional tax on profit before tax,
EERENMERARX calculated at the rates applicable
FHEBRBANE N 2 to profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned
BEME 13,177 15,266
A HR 2 2 BT 52 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 408 364
BAG W A 2§15 % 2 Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (579) (1,288)
MERARIKAZESE Preferential tax rate on subsidiaries’
BE (K ) income (note) (4,502) (8,204)
AEAME KRR Tax effect of unused tax losses
MEBRIRBETE not recognised 1,166 566
BREFAERHNE Recognition of deferred tax in respect of
BB ZELER A prior year’s unrecognised tax losses (13) -
WEFERBTR/ Under/(over)-provision in prior years
(@ F) 158 (80)
ERFBEIN Actual tax expense 9,815 6,624
BfaE : REIABBIRTIRE P EAMEE AR Note: The provision for the PRC current tax is based on
BFRRBRROIEE - L EH 15% (2006: a preferential rate of 7.5%) of the
BARZERBWAERBLE15% assessable income of the PRC subsidiaries as
(ZZE2RE BEBE75% B determined in accordance with the relevant income
B BmTHEME QA NEERE tax rules and regulations of the PRC. Certain PRC
FEERTMEERRHMMIE subsidiaries have been exempted from Foreign
RELEFEH - HE=ZEFE Enterprise Income Tax for two years starting from the
Bl 32 BRAR 2EF R 50%8 4 B 1R first profit making year and thereafter subject to

BEREREHR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 £ & % #

Foreign Enterprise Income Tax at 50% of the standard
tax rate for the following three years.
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6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

()

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the
Tenth National People’s Congress passed the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “new tax law”) which
will take effect on 1 January 2008. Subsidiaries in the
PRC are currently subject to tax laws applicable to
foreign investment enterprises in the PRC. A PRC
subsidiary has been granted tax incentives in which it
will be fully exempted from income tax and thereafter
subject to tax at 50% of the standard tax rates under
the existing relevant tax rules. The detailed
implementation rules regarding the tax incentive
policies under the new tax law have yet to be made
public. Consequently, the group is not able to make
an estimate of the expected financial effect of the new
tax law on its deferred tax assets and liabilities. The
enactment of the new tax law did not have any
financial effect on the amounts accrued in the balance

sheets in respect of current tax payable.
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7. EEM e

REEB(ARKEM)F161 RINB2ES

7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS

LIMITED

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161

MeamT : of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
I
BHR
ENEN 1R
Salaries, AR
EZhe allowances ki Retirement
Directors’  and henefits  Discretionary scheme At
fees in kind honuses  contributions Total
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
“ERtE 2007
HITES Executive directors
BRAA Chan Yum Kit - 5,528 - 12 5,540
G4l Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 3,578 = 12 3,590
HEE Chui Hing Yee - 1,768 60 12 1,840
RE & Chan Sze Chun - 737 50 12 799
BYFHTEZE Independent non-executive
directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 48 . = = 48
KRB Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 48 - - - 48
MR Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 48 - - - 48
144 11,611 110 48 11,913
“RENE 2006
HITEZE Executive directors
RAN Chan Yum Kit - 5411 - 12 5,423
Gt Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 3,462 - 12 3,474
HER Chui Hing Yee - 1,552 50 12 1,614
RER Chan Sze Chun - 629 35 12 676
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive
directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 48 - - - 48
Ak Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 48 - - - 48
R Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 48 - = - 48
144 11,054 85 48 11,331
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

In addition, certain directors were granted options to
subscribe for shares in the company. Details of the share
options granted and outstanding in respect of each director
as at 31 March 2007 are set out under the section “Share

options scheme” of the report of the directors.

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include
$2,188,000 (2006: $1,705,000) representing own land and

buildings provided to directors based on market rental.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2006: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of

the other two (2006: two) individuals are as follows:

—E2ELHF —EEREF

2007 2006

Fr Fr

$'000 $'000

FekHEMmMe Salaries and other emoluments 1,438 1,577
B 15 FE AL Discretionary bonuses 405 336
RN ET 8 it Retirement scheme contributions 24 24
1,867 1,937

SR (CEEAE M) MEES A+

The emoluments of the two (2006: two) individuals with

ZHEETHHEER : the highest emoluments are within the following band:
A
Number of individuals
—ETLH —EBERANE
$ 2007 2006
T — 1,000,000 7T Nil = 1,000,000 2 1

1,000,001 7t — 1,500,000 7T 1,000,001 - 1,500,000
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9. F Wik F
AAREERRELFAESEANEBE—Z2
SR A B B #®E AR E19,749,0007T
(ZZEZRF 1 20,283,0007T) Z @ Fl °

FHHBERNRAANFERFN ZH IR -

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the company includes a profit of $19,749,000 (2006:
$20,283,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the company’s profit

for the year:

—ETTLHE ZEEARE
2007 2006
Fr Fr
$7000 $'000
BIAARRRMBHREXZ Amount of consolidated profit attributable to
BERREEESE equity shareholders dealt with in the
i company’s financial statements 19,749 20,283
BN E LR E— Final dividend from subsidiary attributable
MRz &N - W to the profits of the previous financial period,
RAEFEE%ZAERKN approved and paid during the year
ZRKEBE 40,000 40,000
RABREANZEM Company’s profit for the year (note 27(b))
(Kfat27(b)) 59,749 60,283
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DIVIDENDS

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

company attributable to the year

EERREMNTBEE

51l

(ZF2XF: 8B51)
REEAKRE

of 5 cents per share
(2006: 5 cents per share)

Interim dividend declared and paid

14,098

Final dividend proposed after the
balance sheet date of 12 cents

per share (2006: 12 cents per share) 33,844

14,095

33,834

47,942

47,929

REERRE
EEEBRERRBEE -

BAALRABERR 2 E-—HBFE
RE  ARAFESKERIKM

K2 REIR B IR

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet

date has not been recognised as a liability at the

balance sheet date.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

company attributable to the previous financial year,

approved and paid during the year

ZETLEHF ZEETAREF
2007 2006
Fr Fr
$'000 $'000
BRE-BHEER ¥R Final dividend in respect of the previous
KERE%ZERIKN financial year, approved and paid
AR EER 1240 during the year, of 12 cents per share
(ZZZRF : §k2Ml) (2006: 12 cents per share) 33,834 33,816
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M. 8RER

(a)

BERELRBA
ERERBIDREADAEBER
% 3R FE 45 7% 1 78,254,000T (= = F <
& 178,811,000) RAFEE BT
BRI 2 INFEF198281,962,932/ (==
TN E 1 281,851,9180%) 5T & o

EREBERA
ERBBERFDIRELRALATAEZRES
% 3R FE 465 % 1 78,254,0007T (= Z & 7x
& :78,811,000t) R E A#EE
EERCTEFHARRCEER
I AE F 39 2284,627,074 (ZZEF 5~
fF 1 284,746,6088%) 5t EH - B R INFE
THHEZFAEDT :

Bl

BEERZINEFHGH ()

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the company of $78,254,000 (2006:
$78,811,000) and the weighted average number of
281,962,932 (2006: 281,851,918) ordinary shares in

issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the company of $78,254,000 (2006:
$78,811,000) and the weighted average number of
284,627,074 (2006: 284,746,608) ordinary shares after
adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

ZTTtR ZEERE
2007 2006
Ro#A ik 17 &1 B
Number of Number of
shares shares
R=ZRA=+-RBEARYZ Weighted average number of ordinary shares
19 at 31 March 281,962,932 281,851,918
HERBBEARAZ Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares
BREGE T ERET under the company’s share option scheme
TRk w2 for nil consideration 2,664,142 2,894,690
R=ZRA=+-RBEARYZ Weighted average number of ordinary shares
MEFHE (85F) (diluted) at 31 March 284,627,074 284,746,608
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING
Segment information is presented in respect of the group’s
geographical segments. Information relating to geographical
segments based on the location of customers is chosen
because this is in line with the group’s management
information reporting system.

Segment outside Hong Kong represents sales to customers
located in the PRC, Taiwan and Macau.

No business segment analysis of the group is presented
because sales of garments is the only distinguishable
business segment of the group.

Geographical segments
The group comprises the following main geographical

segments:
B FAEN AAR &4
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Unallocated Consolidated
ZEEtE ZEENE CERtE ZETRE CEELE C-IT5F CZERLE CER5E
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
T T T T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RENREPZHA Revenue from
external customers 208,078 202,823 144,139 108,794 - - 352,217 311,617
RENREPZERBBA Other revenue from
external customers - - - - 725 n 725 7
5% Total 208078 20283 144139 108,794 725 m B 312,339
AHALRE Seqment result 6693 449 33608 29378 80301 71,807
AOEEERERER Unallocated operating
income and expenses 5,158 3,907
e g Profit from operations 85,459 75,714
BEMRE Finance costs (365) (251)
THRBRENR Net valuation gains
RENEZHE on land and buildings and
K& %E investment properties 2975 9,972
H&EH Income tax (9815)  (6,624)
EQEH Profit for the year 78,254 78,811
REERE Depreciation for the year 5,688 7910 7,046 2487 12,934 10,397
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12. D EVER & (&) 12. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
Bk BREN G4
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Consolidated
“ERLE ZZTTRF ZBELE ZTTRE ZERtE ZTIRE
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
T T Tr T r T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
NEHEE Segment assets 169,185 142,024 117,539 79,263 286,724 221,287
ANREE Unallocated assets 121,307 120,934
EERE Total assets 408,031 342,221
AHERE Segment liabilities 28,826 20,111 14,238 11,220 43,064 31,331
APERRE Unallocated liabilities 13,413 10,184
AERE Total liabilities 56,477 41,515
AFEREEY Capital expenditure
BERRY incurred during
the year 15,136 7,211 17,141 7,179
BRHRAFLEHNER Additional information
concerning
geographical
segments:
REEMENED Segment assets
LABEE by the location
of assets 176,811 153,200 109,913 68,087
REEMENEDZ Capital expenditure
AEEMESE incurred during
ERRAX the year by the
location of assets 11,354 5,517 20,923 8,873
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13. B EEE 13. FIXED ASSETS
(a) ZA£& (@) The group
FH - BE
ZE EHR
BAEERE
LMWEW\& kAE
KEBRZ Furniture,
THREEY fixtures,
landand  IEXZE computer and
buildings REH office ~ HENZE
held for own Plant  equipment £ RENZ
use carried and  and motor  Leasehold NEF Investment B3
at fair value  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total  properties Total
rn I rn T rn r rn
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
BARHE Cost or valuation:
R-ZZHEMA-H At1 April 2005 94,400 2,535 15,211 19,407 131,553 4,100 135,653
EXAE Exchange adjustments - 37 20 66 123 - 123
2E Additions - 2,314 3,891 8,185 14,390 - 14,390
ﬁ’iﬁ Disposals - - (932) (1,717) (2,649) - (2,649)
X b Reclassification (6,400) - - - (6,400) 6,400 -
EfRR Surplus on revaluation 16,440 - - . 16,440 . 16,440
W RAEY Less: elimination of
accumulated
depreciation (2,040) - - - (2,040) - (2,040)
AFERE Fair value adjustment = = = = = 3,600 3,600
RZFZRE At 31 March 2006
_E}Etﬁ___________102,_400__%86__lﬂ90__2241__151,417 14,100 165,517
1% Representing:
A Cost - 4,886 18,190 25,941 49,017 = 49,017
fE-—FE/E Valuation - 2006 102,400 = = - 102,400 14100 116,500
o mAw s WIS BT ISAT M 1S
RZBZREMA-R A1 April 2006 102,400 4,886 18,190 941 151417 14100 165,517
L Exchange adjustments - 122 138 520 780 . 780
BE Additions 12,679 370 3,799 9,620 26,468 5,809 32,277
ﬂfﬁ Disposals - (150) (1,113) (2,881) (4,144) - (4,144)
ENNR Reclassification 5,809 - - = 5,809 (5,809) =
EfRRH Surplus on revaluation 24793 - B B 24793 - 24793
W RHITEHE Less: elimination of
accumulated
depreciation (2,561) - - - (2,561) - (2,561)
NEERE Fair value adjustment = = = = = 3,030 3,030
RZESLE At 31 March 2007
EASTSE e sms 1M B s v neem
R % Representing:
s Cost - 5,228 21,014 33,200 59,442 - 59,442
fE-—2%tE Valuation - 2007 143,120 = - - 143,120 17,130 160,250
143,120 5,228 21,014 33,200 202,562 17,130 219,692
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13. BIEEE (&)

MOISELLE #smEmxeEERA7 MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
_‘}:\
W %5 e 32 B RE
Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
13. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
rEE (F) (@) The group (continued)
B BE
£E EHR
HRELR
UATETIE kRE
BEERZ Furniture,
THEEEY fixtures,
landand  TEHE computer and
buildings REH office  HENF
held for own Plant  equipment £ RENZ
use carried and  and motor  Leasehold NEF Investment @t
at fair value  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total properties Total
T T T T T S T
$/000 §'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
HEAR Aggregate depreciation:
RZZTREMA-A Al April 2005 - 1,901 9,962 11,516 23,379 - 23,379
B HE Exchange adjustments - 29 4 12 45 - 45
AEEHE Charge for the year 2,040 195 2,429 5,733 10,397 - 10397
HEREMD Written back on disposals - - (349) (1,559) (1,908) = (1,908)
B(EE Elimination on revaluation (2,040) = = S (2,040) = (2,040)
R-FEIRE At 31 March 2006
E)Etﬁ_ ___________ - ﬂZS_ 12,046 15,702 29,673 - 29,673
RZTTREMA—R  At1 April 2006 - 2,125 12,046 15,702 29,673 - 29,673
ERBE Exchange adjustments - 21 38 203 262 - 262
RERHE Charge for the year 2,561 261 2377 7,735 12,934 - 12,934
HERED Written back on disposals - (52) (1,031) 2197) (3,260) - (3,260)
B4 Elimination on revaluation (2,561) - - - (2,561) - (2,561)
R-BRtE At 31 March 2007
=R=1+-H - 2,355 13,430 21,443 37,028 - 37,028
REFHE Net book value:
R-BRLE At 31 March 2007
“R=t-H 143,120 2,873 7,564 11,757 165,334 17,130 182,464
R-BINE At 31 March 2006
=R=1+-H 102,400 2,761 6,144 10239 121,544 14,100 135,644
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MOISELLE

13. BEEEE (&)

(b)

R-ZEZELHE=ZF=+—H X&EH
CHREMEULRSERERRANE

EHzFHSWMAEBTEZLRS
BRAEEETEM HEHBLGEE
AABERTERAT (REEBRE
BAEMEEEE2E T UH VR
HEMEBREBNEBUR 2 K8) &
1T °

R-ZEZELE=F=+—H X&EH
BEEBERAZLHREEYETER °
EMUEEEBEILSEHETSE
BrALHEERGEEHZ A ETES
BEE - HETHHERITERA A (K
HUMRMEEYELSERENEER
ZEB)ET BHE_ZZTLF=A=
+T-BLEE RELGERBESHE
24,793,000t (ZEZ /R F © 16,440,000
JT) B 24,848,000 (=2 Z KN & ¢
10,068,000t ) £ 401 bR IE 3E FT 15 Bl & (BT
FE25(b) B E E (G FEE (HEE27() -
M & 4 55,000t (ZZEZXF : B
6,372,0007t) ERGEBHE KT A ©

fid LFEBRAZTHWEEEYC R
RARBAIEINER  R=ZZtHF
=A=+t-—HZEKREMEKAHS81,515000
TL(ZZEZNE : 64,309,0007T) °

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED #sxmEmemsr2d MOISELLE

S 85 i 2% M Rk

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b)

The group’s investment properties were revalued as at
31 March 2007 on an open market value basis
calculated by reference to net rental income allowing
for reversionary income potential. The valuations were
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, who have among their
staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and category

of property being valued.

The group’s land and buildings held for own use were
revalued at 31 March 2007 at their open market values
by direct comparison approach by making reference
to comparable sale transactions as available in the
relevant market. The valuations were also carried out
by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited who has recent
experience in the location and category of property
being value. Out of the total revaluation surplus of
$24,793,000 (2006: $16,440,000), $24,848,000 (2006:
$10,068,000) has been transferred to the revaluation
reserve (note 27(a)), net of deferred tax (note 25(b))
and a deficit of $55,000 has been charged (2006:
surplus of $6,372,000) to the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2007.

Had the above land and buildings held for own use
been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation,
the carrying amounts would have been $81,515,000
(2006: $64,309,000) at 31 March 2007.
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MOISELLE ##sg&EEERAs MOISELLE

S 85 i 2% M Rk

78 Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13. BIE&EE (&)

(d MEZEEFEIMAOT :

13.

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(d)

The analysis of net book value of properties is as

follows:

KE
The group
—EZTtHF —EETRE
2007 2006
Fr Fr
$/000 $/000
REE In Hong Kong

- REHEE - Long leases 49,970 40,000
—FHEE — Medium-term leases 72,300 59,100
- HHHEE — Short leases 2,300 2,000

R Outside Hong Kong
- RHPHEE - Long leases 4,400 3,000
—HHHEE — Medium-term leases 31,280 12,400
160,250 116,500

(6) REBMETYLCEREALEE
BERBERREMRTREZBR

(e)

Certain properties of the group were pledged to
secure mortgage loans and other banking facilities

granted to the group as follows:

&
The group
—ETtHF —EERF
2007 2006
Fr Tr
$7000 $'000
EERAYMR2EEFE Net book value of pledged properties - 82,000
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13. BIEREE (&)

(f)

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED #zEgsmaras MOISELLE

S 85 i 2% M Rk

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

BRELEHEHEZEEEE (f) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
FERBREHESFLFEREY All properties held under operating leases that would
XTEBZVEBRERREYE - otherwise meet the definition of investment property
are classified as investment property.
AEBREKEHEHAHRENZE - It The group leases out investment properties under
EHE-RATAH=F LARY operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
mEENEEMAGRESR - HEN period of three years, with an option to renew the
REBREEEFRAE  URRHEM lease after that date at which time all terms are
T BEKLEHEYTEERNEHESE - renegotiated. Lease payments are usually adjusted
annually to reflect market rentals. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.
AEBRAATEBRNEEHEERR The group’s total future minimum lease payments under
FUNSEESSRABEDT : non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as
follows:
—EELHF ZEETRE
2007 2006
T Fr
$/000 $000
—FR Within 1 year 577 -
—FRELFA After 1 year but within 5 years 550 -
1,127 -
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MOISELLE ##EreEmaRAs MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HE B ik 3R M 5
80 Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
14. RHBARZER 14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
—EELHF —EERE
2007 2006
F F
$000 $'000
LMD - BEKAE Unlisted shares, at cost 61,672 61,672
JE W Bt /B 2 R) 5k IR Amounts due from subsidiaries 76,986 -
138,658 61,672

BEUHMEBARARBASELRR RERER
EENY  HEEHMFTEREEHIE-—FA

WmE e

LTEARHAEEXE BERRERE
FECHWBARZFHE - REBEHN

FEEzRHHVHEEER -

ZEZEVNBLARABIRWE QR REZ
BE - YERAEBEZUBBERESHE -

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free
and have no fixed terms of repayment but are not expected

to be recovered within one year of the balance sheet date.

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets
or liabilities of the group. The class of shares held is

ordinary unless otherwise stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under
note 1(c) and have been consolidated into the group

financial statements.

ERITRAR
N
BRI
= i B 32 Particulars £A
K& E of issued and & % b
Place of fully paid-up Proportion TEXH
NI incorporation share/registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
EEREHR
Directly held
Moiselle (BVI) Limited KERBRES 2,000 5 7T 100% REZR
British Virgin US$2,000 Investment
Islands holding
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MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED #zmpemEsaraa MOISELLE

14. RSB QA 2 ExE (8)

S 85 i 2% M Rk

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERITRAR
N
ERZFHE
=F it BX 32 Particulars A
R&&i of issued and R % L Bl
Place of fully paid-up Proportion TEEK
NI incorporation share/registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
BEER
Indirectly held
Always Profit Holdings RERBARES 1%7T 100% REERK
Limited* British Virgin US$1 Investment
Islands holding
EHBRMBERRDF "R BEEERERE 100% W IR BB
Boo Gie Garment Factory Hong Kong 200,0007T RYEFHE
Limited ZER Sourcing of
1,800,001 7T materials and
Deferred property holding
non-voting
$200,000
Ordinary
$1,800,001
EHEERRAF 78 27T 100% REEZR
Boogie Holdings Limited Hong Kong $2 Investment
holding
BEGZB)BERAA BB 47T 100% RAZR
Bright Star (HK) Limited Hong Kong $4 Investment
holding
HEEKRBRDF 78 27T 100% MEFE
Busy Win International Limited Hong Kong $2 Property
holding

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 &£ E & #



MOISELLE #smEmxeEERA7 MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

B %% Hir 3% B 5E
82 Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. AMBAR & (&) 14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EETRAR
BRA =
BERZFHTE
= i A% 3L Particulars 58
K& E i of issued and & b i
Place of fully paid-up Proportion TEXH
NEEW incorporation share/registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
BiEEE (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
REESHRAF BB 1,0007T 100% MEFA
Eastasia Plaza Limited Hong Kong $1,000 Property
holding
Euro Legend Assets Limited* REERRES 1% 7T 100% REEZER
British Virgin US$1 Investment
Islands holding
NEREBRERAA ) 27T 100% RELZR
iMaroon International Hong Kong $2 Investment
Company Limited holding
MmEBEBRERRAF BB 10,0007T 100% MEFA
Landwin Investments Limited Hong Kong $10,000 Property
holding
RE(BEB)BARLAF ) 500,0007T 100% T E K iR o
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong $500,000 X F &
Retail of fashion
apparel and
accessories
REEKRBRAF ) 27T 100% RELZR
Moiselle International Limited Hong Kong $2 Investment
holding
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MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED #zmpemEsaraa MOISELLE

14. RSB QA 2 ExE (8)

14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

S 85 i 2% M Rk

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ERITRAR
N
ERZFHE
= i B 32 Particulars A
KA E B of issued and & % b
Place of fully paid-up Proportion TEEK
NI incorporation share/registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
BEER (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
ZEHARRAA RERBRES 17T 100% T & B i AR &
Onexcel Limited? British Virgin US$1 K BC £
Islands Retail of fashion
apparel and
accessories
EZRERRLF 78 500,0007T 100% TEE R
Pearl Jade Investments Limited Hong Kong $500,000 X B &
Retail of fashion
apparel and
accessories
BREBBRBERAF 78 4,0007T 100% TEE R
Perfect National Hong Kong $4,000 K BC £
International Limited Retail of fashion
apparel and
accessories
BEERRERRAF 78 1,0007T 100% MEFE
Shirley Investments Hong Kong $1,000 Property
Limited holding
BEREBRAF 78 47T 100% MEFE
Sky Well Investment Limited Hong Kong $4 Property
holding
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S 85 i 2% M Rk

84 Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. RE QR 2 ExE (8)

14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS

LIMITED

EERTRAR
B A
ERZFHE
=F it BX 32 Particulars FA
SRS of issued and & % b 45
Place of fully paid-up Proportion TEXH
NEEB incorporation share/registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
BEEHR (F)
Indirectly held (continued)
ERERAF REERMRES 10,0003 7T 100% REZR
Sosuccess Limited* British Virgin Us$10,000 Investment
Islands holding
REBRERLDE KEBEBRES 1% 100% REZR
Timepro International British Virgin US$1 Investment
Limited? Islands holding
ERREKBRAF" B P EMER 100% ZER R
Treasure Light Fashion Macau 25,0008 9 7T K B2 &
Limited? Registered Retail of
capital of fashion apparel
MOP$25,000 and accessories
RHREBRD A 58 27T 100% REZR
United Sino Investment Limited Hong Kong $2 Investment
holding
BERMERAF ) 1,0007T 100% RELZR
Viewgood Overseas Hong Kong $1,000 Investment
Limited holding
FilggxR ORI BR A F H B = ft & A 100% FEHRK
Ming Fung Garment Manufacturing PRC 2,100,0007T Manufacturing
(Shenzhen) Company Limited** Registered of garments
capital of
$2,100,000
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14. RSB QA 2 ExE (8)

15.

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED #sxmEmemsr2d MOISELLE

S 85 i 2% M Rk

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERTRAR
B A 5 B
ERZFHE
= i AR 32 Particulars 5B
K £ & it B of issued and & % b Al
Place of fully paid-up Proportion TEXEHK
NEE B incorporation share/registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
BEEE (A)
Indirectly held (continued)
HEBERIHBER QA B Bl = it & A 100% HE KK
Yubao Fashionable Dress PRC 8,400,000 JT Manufacturing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.** Registered of garments
capital of
$8,400,000
RYBE=RFRABHR D F B M E AR 100% #t B B 18
Shenzhen Baozhuo PRC AR ¥ 500,000 7T PR &0 & BC &b
Fashion Wholesale Registered Wholesale of
Co., Ltd.** capital of fashion apparel
RMB500,000 and accessories
RN BXREZERR A A A E = it & AR 100% T & B
Shen Zhen Graceful PRC A K ¥ 2,000,000 JT Bk & M B &b
Fashion Retail Registered Retail of
Limited Company** capital of fashion apparel

*RETBEEMERZIERELE -

FAWHHESREAMEREAETERZD

El o

Hth&EE

15.

HtmEEEEHES 2 HAREREMEZES
13,227,000t (Z & & X F : 12,118,000
) c EHUREEREF —FRUKE -

RMB2,000,000

and accessories

* These are wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises

registered under the laws of the PRC.

Companies not audited by KPMG.

OTHER ASSETS

Included in other assets are rental, utility and other deposits
of $13,227,000 (2006: $12,118,000), which are expected

to be recovered after one year from the balance sheet date.
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MOISELLE ##EreEmaRAs MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ot 5 e 22 Bt sk
Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
16. Hh e @& E 16. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
AEBRERF
The group and the company
—EELH —EERE
2007 2006
T T
$'000 $'000
REBLTZRARS Equity securities listed in Hong Kong
®mE at market value 469 505
REINHZFLITEEES Unlisted held-to-maturity debt securities 3,890 3,891
4,359 4,396
17. & 17. INVENTORIES

() REEEBRZFERE :

(@) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise:

KE

The group
—ETLF —TERF
2007 2006
Tr Tr
$/000 $/000
J& 7 Raw materials 10,266 8,586
£ & m Work in progress 3,656 1,694
2% G Finished goods 55,695 44,103
69,617 54,383

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 £ & % #



MOISELLE

17. 78 (&)
(b) BREMIXZFEESHZ2IMUT :

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED #¥s#mEp£Esr23d MOISELLE

S 85 i 2% M Rk

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17. INVENTORIES (continued)

(b)

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised

as an expense is as follows:

PiNg- 3
The group
—EELHF —EEARE
2007 2006
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
EEREE Carrying amount of inventories sold 70,722 67,314
M T E Write down of inventories 2,967 8,185
73,689 75,499
18. BB W BR X K% H fth FE WK 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
i3 b N/NE|
The group The company
—EZtE ZTTRF ZEELE ZTTRF
2007 2006 2007 2006
(£5)
(restated)
T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $'000
EWERE  &Re Rk Trade receivables, deposits
B HE and prepayments 41,920 36,619 109 109
& W B B A B R Amounts due from subsidiaries - = 20,356 142,031
41,920 36,619 20,465 142,140
@ EURHKBATREEEEF RER (@) Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest

ANREEBAKEE -

free and repayable on demand.
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MOISELLE ##EreEmaRAs MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
_}:\
W %5 e 32 B RE
Notes to the Financial Statements
(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
18. BUWER AR H fth FE WL R (&) 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
b)) EWEREEMEKRREEESENY (b) Included in trade and other receivables are trade
RERGEERAZREI2TOT : debtors with the following ageing analysis as of the
balance sheet date:
RE
The group
—EELHF —EEREF
2007 2006
Fx T
$’000 $000
REESHEZKRER ©  Outstanding balances with ages:
308 Within 30 days 11,185 9,239
31THZ 90 H Between 31 to 90 days 10,039 7,403
91 HE 180 H Between 91 to 180 days 2,826 5,205
181 H & 365 H Between 181 to 365 days 2,013 5,540
i# 3@ 365 H Over 365 days 1,953 —
28,016 27,387

AEBZ2EEBRRE HNKE28(@)
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20.

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED #zmpemEsaraa MOISELLE
R
W %5 e 32 B RE
Notes to the Financial Statements 89
(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RBReRkRREeZEEY 19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
xEE VN
The group The company
“EELF ZZTRE ZETLE ZZERF
2007 2006 2007 2006
Fr T Tr T
$/000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RITEN Deposits with banks 43,173 64,610 - =
BIOIGEREAE Cash at bank and in hand 47,133 28,331 5,409 5,090
REERBERZES Cash and cash equivalents
B EEY in the balance sheets 90,306 92,941 5,409 5,090
RITES (Kt 22) Bank overdrafts (note 22) - (1,346)
REERERER Cash and cash equivalents
ZEERASEEY in the consolidated cash
flow statement 90,306 91,595

EEERERFTIZRAERAESEEYERE

THFEERBz2NEER

Be &

BREMLZIME

Included in cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet

are the following amounts denominated in a currency other

A than the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate:
AEBRALDF
The group and the company
—EETLHF —ETRF
2007 2006

X United States Dollars USD225,157 %t USD192,854 3 JT
FE 1 B B 2 B KR 20. AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES

BNMBLARAZREREER RERA

REEBANKEE -

Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free

and repayable on demand.
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S 85 i 2% M Rk

90 Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21. BHRR K H MRS

EHRERANRARAMBESRITAR -

FREE-

EAEREEGMESRBEEZE S BN HRE

REERBZREDTOT :

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

settled within one year.

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors

with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet

date:
ZN S
The group

—EELHF —EEREF
2007 2006
Fr T
$7000 $'000

AEEHRBE KRR Outstanding balances with ages:
308 A Within 30 days 5,606 6,224
31THZ 90H Between 31 to 90 days 1,544 1,144
i @ 90 H Over 90 days 1,111 1,340
8,261 8,708
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S 85 i 2% M Rk

Notes to the Financial Statements 91

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2. RTERKREX 22. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS
R-ZZEZEZRF=ZA=1+—H EEFKE At 31 March 2006, the bank loans and overdrafts were
BERTERREXWT : secured and repayable as follows:

&
The group
—EELF ZEEAREF
2007 2006
F T
$000 $'000
—FAXKREX Within 1 year or on demand - 1,687
—FREMFA After 1 year but within 2 years - 361
MERERLFRA After 2 years but within 5 years - 894
I F 1&g After 5 years - 2,160
- 3,415
- 5,102
R=ZZEZERF=ZA=+—-—B ' RTERK At 31 March 2006, the analysis of bank loans and overdrafts
EXDMAOT ¢ were as follows:
&
The group
—EELF ZEEARF
2007 2006
Fr Tr
$000 $'000
RITEZ (MFaE19) Bank overdrafts (note 19) - 1,346
RITE X Bank loans - 3,756
- 5,102
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MOISELLE ##sg&EEERAs MOISELLE

S 85 i 2% M Rk

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22 RITERREX (#) 22,
R-ZZELFE=ZA=+—H AEEZR
TREDHAAARAREZATEREER -
R-ZZBERE AFERTHERALE
& 42 BR EF E 49 82,000,000t 2 FHE £+ 1 &
BEYURBRENEZEIERTEER
TEEREFREREBEERITENR R
BERTERHEMRBREITHRE

BREBERND ZERITRENSR
90,250,000t (ZZEZ /< F : 48,250,0007T) °
R-ZZEZELtE=ZA=+—-—HEHAY
1,500,0007c (ZEZE X F : 2,976,0007T) °

23. BEEKER 23.

(@) AEEBERERECRATIMEAB S EF
BIYEREB(EBKA) EEEHE R
ERAZEEHTRAIEAE S A
(MaELstal) - BELTEEEB
YZTAAEBZRAEMRRBRIKRGE o
REEEL2TE  EXREESAER
EEBEBEKRAZ%aZtEH®HHR - 8
BABEBEWA LERA20,0007T ° BE
SHEZHRDNEREE -

by HEZHMBLARC2EABITRFE
B RAEMURE - WEWB QX AAE
BEHEEEREF S 2B THEELX
BZtEER - HADENERES -
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INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS

LIMITED

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS (continued)

At 31 March 2007, the group’s banking facilities were
guaranteed by corporate guarantee provided by the
company. In 2006, the group’s banking facilities were also
secured by legal charges over the leasehold land and
buildings and investment properties of the group with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately $82,000,000. The
group has early repaid the bank loans during the year and
the legal charges have been released upon repayment of

the bank loans.

Such banking facilities, other than mortgage loans,
(2006:
$48,250,000) were utilised to the extent of approximately
$1,500,000 (2006: $2,976,000) at 31 March 2007.

amounting to approximately $90,250,000

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(@) The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $20,000. Contributions to

the MPF scheme vest immediately.

(b) The subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution scheme organised by the local
government. These subsidiaries are required to make
contributions at certain prescribed rates of the relevant
PRC employees’ salaries to the scheme. Contributions

to the scheme vest immediately.
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. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

(c) Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in
Taiwan have chosen to participate in a defined
contribution scheme governed by the Labour Pension
Act. The subsidiary contributes at 6% of the total
salaries of participating employees that choose to
participate in the defined contribution scheme,
deposited into individual pension accounts at the
Bureau of Labour Insurance. Contributions to the
defined contribution scheme are charged to profit or

loss when incurred.

Save as set out above, the group has no other material
obligations to make payments in respect of retirement

benefits of the employees.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was adopted on 25 January 2002 to enable the
company to grant options to selected participants as
incentives and rewards for their contribution to the group.
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten

years from the date of its adoption.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the company are
authorised, at their discretion, to offer full-time employees,
executives or officers, including the directors of the
company or any of its subsidiaries or any suppliers,
consultants, agents and advisers who will or have
contributed to the group, options to subscribe for such
number of new shares of the company as the board of
directors of the company may determine. Upon acceptance
of the option, the grantee shall pay $1.00 to the company

by way of consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal
value of the shares, the closing price of the shares on the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant and the average closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading

days immediately preceding the date of grant.
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24, LRAFTANRZBRODERR S (4) 24.
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(a) BREZD

NTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

There is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised and the options are
exercisable for a period to be notified by the directors to
each option-holder upon the grant of option, such period
not to exceed ten years commencing on the date on which
the option is granted. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one share.

(@) Movements in share options

—ETLF —BEAF

2007 2006

2B 2 H

Number Number

R A—B At 1 April 6,000,000 6,150,000

2171 Exercised (80,000) (150,000)

R=RA=+—H At 31 March 5,920,000 6,000,000
R=R=+—8H Options vested at 31 March

5B 2 B 5,920,000 6,000,000

(b) FRAEFEZBREZHERRKMEN

(b) The terms and conditions of the share options that

T existed during the year are as follows:
—E22tHF —EEARF
2007 2006
RHBH TREHE TEE B B
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price Number Number
—BF-F —EF-FHMA=-t=H 1.157
mA=H E_Z-_fWMA—-H
2 April 2002 23 April 2002 to 1 April 2012 $1.15 5,900,000 5,900,000
—FE-F —EE=FDWA=H 1.157T
MA=H E-ZE-_FMNA—H
2 April 2002 2 April 2003 to 1 April 2012 $1.15 100,000 250,000
6,000,000 6,150,000
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24. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(c) Details of share options exercised during the year:

RiTRERH 2 i

ZBRWE P 6 % R
TfE R TEE Market value per Proceeds %A
Exercise date Exercise price share at exercise date received Number
—FEL¥-HA=1—H 1.157T 2.07 T
31 January 2007 $1.15 $2.07 $92,000 80,000

BE-ZZTLF=ZA=Z+-HLEE
WERHEAERERBRBERY -

HRAEEERAC(E B BHREEL)
F2RITURDBER NI Z2BE
MR AEELEFRFAER-ZF
“ET-RABRHcREBRERR
EMAMMAX -

(d) No share options were granted or lapsed during the
year ended 31 March 2007.

(e) The group has not recognised any expenses in respect
of these share options, which were all granted prior
to November 2002, as it took advantage of the
transitional provisions set out in HKFRS 2 “Share-based

payment”.
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25 EEEBRIATZHMBHR 25. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET
(a) EEEEBRA T ZABPHEESE ! (@) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents:
PN
The group
—ETLE  CFEAE
2007 2006
F ¥
$'000 $'000
KEERE Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
MEHEE for the year 2,241 352
B EHAEH Provisional Profits Tax paid (1,340) (541)
901 (189)
BRATFEEHEZ Balance of Profits Tax recoverable
Il 15 7 o 8 8 & 5 relating to prior years (1,127) (1,127)
BREFNHE Taxation outside Hong Kong 3,977 2,364
3,751 1,048
RE& Representing:
] 2 2§ 18 Tax recoverable (1,695) (1,503)
fE R Tax payable 5,446 2,551
3,751 1,048
MEHENRE EBAREERER None of the tax recoverable/payable is expected to be
—FRBEMN - settled after more than one year.
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25. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)

(b)

RAFEERCEERBERBEAZE

EFEHR (EE) BEZEARTD

P54

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
The group
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the

ERZ2HMOT : movements during the year are as follows:
SR
RBHEZ
HERHA
Depreciation HEEBZ K2R
allowances A&AE FERM
less than BlENE Future Unrealised
related Revaluation henefits of profits on ag
depreciation  of properties tax losses inventories Total
T T T Tr T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BEFRBHREE : Deferred tax arising from:
R_ZTLF At 1 April 2005
mA—A (963) 691 (1,039) (2,441) (3,752)
(GFA) /KB (Credited)/charged to
BaE profit or loss (21) 614 (380) 260 473
fe Mk Charged to reserves - 1,193 = = 1,193
R-ZFBERE At 31 March 2006
=A=+-H (984) 2,498 (1,419) (2,181) (2,086)
RZZERE At 1 April 2006
MmA—A (984) 2,498 (1,419) (2,181) (2,086)
(GtA) /H1kE (Credited)/charged to
Bax profit or loss (1,072) 308 83 422 (259)
feRENR Charged to reserves - 6,200 = = 6,200
R-FELE At 31 March 2007
=A=+-H (2,056) 9,006 (1,336) (1,759) 3,855
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(LA #5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25 BEERBERAITAZAER ()

(b)

CEIABLEFESEHEERERE : (&)

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(continued)
NE
The group
—EELHF —EERE
2007 2006
Fr T
$7000 $'000
REEBEXRER Net deferred tax asset recognised on the
ETREREEFS balance sheet 4,112) (4,617)
REEARBRRER Net deferred tax liability recognised on the
REMGHA 1 - balance sheet 7,967 2,531
3,855 (2,086)

AERELEFREHEE -
AEEBRAQAALER T HRKEER
EBBERBRABELERSHEE :

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
The group and the company have not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of the following

temporary differences and tax losses:

x& NN
The group The company

“RELE ZTTRE ZEELFE —ZTTRE

2007 2006 2007 2006

Tr Tr T T

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

B EE Tax losses 43,443 37,374 7,187 6,577
FEEBELR Depreciation allowances less than

HEmE related depreciation - 16 _ _

43,443 37,390 7,187 6,577

BREEEBEREHRBERA  AEBERAE
REAZBEBHBEE D B 542,232,000
T (ZZFZXE 137,374,000t ) &
7,187,000t (ZZZE X F : 6,577,000
T WEER - AEBREBBEIIZH
BEEBER-Z——F&ER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 £ & % #

The group’s and company’s Hong Kong tax losses of
$42,232,000 (2006: $37,374,000) and $7,187,000
(2006: $6,577,000) respectively do not expire under
the current tax legislation in Hong Kong. The group’s

tax losses outside Hong Kong will expire in 2011.
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26. g 7 26. SHARE CAPITAL
ZETLE ZEERE
2007 2006
RH&EE £ R ¢! 8
No. of shares Amount ~ No. of shares Amount
T T
$000 $'000
ZEE Authorised:
SREE0ITZERR Ordinary shares of $0.01 each 1,000,000,000 10,000  1,000,000,000 10,000
EEARAR: Issued and fully paid:
RMA—A At 1 April 281,950,000 2,820 281,800,000 2,818
BRES S 2EETRD Shares issued under share option
(BzE 24(a) scheme (note 24(a)) 80,000 1 150,000 2
R=ZA=+-H At 31 March 282,030,000 2,821 281,950,000 2,820

REAFE EEREETEARBARDT
80,000f% (= Z X F : 150,000 ) &
B REH92,000T (ZFZREF 173,000
7t) 0 EH 1,000t (ZFZXF © 2,0007T)
Bt ABRZR » &k 91,000t (=2 X
& 1 171,0007t) (MFsE27) Bl A B 19 )45 18 BR

I B o

EEREAAEBRERTHERZRE
BEAXALAERLBRIBE-ZERERE -
FEEBRUARAZNBEEZERE

& o

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for
80,000 (2006: 150,000) ordinary shares in the company at
a consideration of $92,000 (2006: $173,000), of which
$1,000 (2006: $2,000) was credited to share capital and
the balance of $91,000 (2006: $171,000) (note 27) was

credited to the share premium account.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the company’s residual

assets.
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27. %% 27. RESERVES
(a) #A~£& (@) Group
TR
EEY
EE BERERE
BHA%  Land and
Rt EE Hit@#E EXME Statutory buildings REEF
Share Other  Exchange  reserve revaluation  Retained ag
premium reserve reserve funds reserve profits Total
T T T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RZZERE At 1 April 2005
mA—A 58,339 121 - 3,317 23,437 172,403 257,617
BHRETEZ Shares issued under
BETRM share option scheme
(Kt it 26) (note 26) 171 - - - - - 171
EEBEREZ Dividend approved in
& & (K 10) respect of the previous
year (note 10) - - - - - (33,816) (33,816)
BERBENBAR  Exchange differences on
HBwEZ translation of financial
EREE statements of PRC
subsidiaries - - 323 - - - 323
B Revaluation surplus,
38 JE F7 15 net of deferred tax
(Bat13(c) (notes 13(c) and 25(b))
R25(b)) - - - - 8,875 - 8,875
REREl Transfer between reserves - - - 707 = (707) =
AEEET Profit for the year - - - - - 78,811 78,811
FEEBERL Dividend declared in
& (K1) respect of the current
year (note 10) - - - - - (14,095) (14,095)
3 2 At 31 March 2006
=R=+—-H 58,510 121 323 4,024 32,312 202,596 297,886
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THE

BEY

EE ERERE

BE#AE Landand

R EE Hitt@HE EXME  Statutory  buildings REEF
Share Other  Exchange  reserve revaluation  Retained am
premium  reserve  reserve funds  reserve profits Total
Tr T Tr T T Tr T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RZZERE At 1 April 2006

mA—A 58,510 121 323 4,024 32,312 202,596 297,886
B Rt 2l Shares issued under

ZBEf share option scheme

B A3 (K 20) (note 26) 91 - - - - - 91
EEBREZ Dividend approved in

& & (K 10) respect of the previous

year (note 10) - - - - - (33,834) (33,634)
BERBEMNBAR  Exchange differences on
MBHRERL translation of financial
=5 statements of PRC
subsidiaries - = 1,786 - - - 1,786
EffR% Revaluation surplus,

WM& M net of deferred tax

(Wit 13(c) (notes 13(c) and 25(b))

K25(b) - - - - 18,648 - 18,648
REEEA Profit for the year - - - - - 78254 78,254
REFBERYZ Dividend declared in

& & (K 10) respect of the current

year (note 10) - - - - - (14,098) (14,099)
R-FELE At 31 March 2007
ZA=1+-H 58,601 121 2,109 4,024 50960 232,918 348,733
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27. f#1E (&) 27. RESERVES (continued)
(b) A2F (b) Company
R0 s B N R 8 & 7l
Share  Contributed Retained Bz
premium surplus profits Total
T T T Tr
$'000 $000 $000 $'000
RZZETRENA—H At 1 April 2005 58,339 61,572 20,090 140,001
BRES S cC%T Shares issued under share option
R (K 26) scheme (note 26) 171 - = 171
LEFEREZRE Dividend approved in respect of
(Kf & 10) the previous year (note 10) - - (33,816) (33,816)
KEF A Profit for the year — - 60,283 60,283
FEEEERZKRE Dividend declared in respect of
(K7 10) the current year (note 10) - — (14,095) (14,095)
RZZTTRF=ZA=1t—H At31 March 2006 58,510 61,572 32,462 152,544
RZZEZREMA—A At 1 April 2006 58,510 61,572 32,462 152,544
BRESECEET Shares issued under share option
Rt (K& 26) scheme (note 26) 91 - - 91
EZEEREZRE Dividend approved in respect of
(BiaE10) the previous year (note 10) - - (33,834) (33,834)
KEF A Profit for the year = = 59,749 59,749
AEEEERZKRE Dividend declared in respect of
(Kizt10) the current year (note 10) = = (14,098) (14,098)
RZZETLF=A=+—H At31 March 2007 58,601 61,572 44,279 164,452
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27. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium account is
distributable to the shareholders of the company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium may also be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal
value of the shares of the company issued in
exchange therefor pursuant to the group
reorganisation which became effective on 25
January 2002.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of PRC operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies set out in note 1(r).
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27. fEfE (&)
(c) EMEERBEMN (&)
(iv)] ZERBBRE
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B ARARAZHEKE QR AR
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ZI0%ERIREESERN  BEZE
ZESZHEBRBEERAETMESR
250%B 1k c WEE ST AER
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FEMBARZEEE AR IER
EERBEANERIMIKBE
EANES R-ZZTHFF+A=
T EtREBTEAE H-ZFEX
F-—A—HEB FEEEBRTEAR
EEBEE - BE-_ZZTtF=A
E+—HBLEFEHE & @B
IRBERBANESELEE -

v) THREZZYEG#E
AEFERILTHREFZYEM
#E LRRAELFFEERL
R BB SR R IR AR 2 B R BUR (MY
FE1MER -

(vi) #A & ER
BABRKRERRER ===
— At EB4EMzEEEAR
WECsHBARAER - AHEE
FHEAQATIRKEEREZE
BOUROcEBEZZE AR
Bz AEEBRHEEHER -
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27. RESERVES (continued)

()

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Statutory reserve funds

According to the PRC laws applicable to wholly-
owned foreign investment enterprises, the PRC
subsidiaries of the company are required to set
up two statutory reserve funds, general reserve
fund and staff general fund. General reserve fund
was set up by appropriating at least 10% of its
annual profit after taxation, as determined under
PRC regulations, until the balance of the fund
equals to 50% of its registered capital. This fund
can be used to make good losses and to convert
into paid-in capital. Transfer from retained
earnings to staff general fund was made at the
discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. Starting from 1 January 2006, the
transfer is no longer a statutory obligation upon
the revision of the law on 27 October 2005 and
no transfer to staff general fund was made during
the year ended 31 March 2007.

Land and building revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve has
been set up and will be dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for the
revaluation of land and buildings held for own

use (note 1(f)).

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the then combined net asset value of
the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value
of the shares of the company issued in exchange
therefor pursuant to the group reorganisation
which became effective on 25 January 2002. The
application of contributed surplus is the same as

the share premium.



MOISELLE

27. %% (&)

(d)

A i 5 K 7% &
RZZEELHE=A=1+—H " A9k
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27. RESERVES (continued)

(d)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2007, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
company was $164,452,000 (2006: $152,544,000).
After the balance sheet date the directors proposed a
final dividend of 12 cents per share (2006: 12 cents
per share), amounting to $33,844,000 (2006:
$33,834,000). This dividend has not been recognised

as a liability at the balance sheet date.

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign

currency risks arises in the normal course of the group’s

business. These risks are limited by the group’s financial

management policies and practices described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These receivables are
due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing.
Debtors with long overdue balances are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. The group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and other receivable
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made

for irrecoverable amounts.
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28. eI A (#£)

(a)

FERR (&)
FEIP 2R ZRERBTER-—K
HEEFRRFNHFHET - BHit
EEEY A ERREHFLIIAERT
RE2EME -

REHER  AXEEBEETEFZEE
B XEBZHEABEEARIKRE
% A 2 Bl 4G BE Uk BR 3k R H i FE W X 42
FZ10%(ZFZNRE : 24%(FF))
R28%(ZZZFRE : 44%(EH)) »

BEAFERBMECEBREEEBRASR
TRHEEZREMEIER AKEALE
REFEMAEAEEEAYEERARD
BBER -

RBEERR
AEBECBRAERERBAIREAS
ZRBETHFE  UBRHEFESR
RERB UERERZEERSR
REEZEMBHRBEZEABESTE U
ENEREMZABESEE -
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INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS

LIMITED

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Investments in held-to-maturity securities and
placement of bank deposits are normally with
counterparties that have sound credit ratings.
Therefore, management does not expect any

investment counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

At the balance sheet date, the group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 10% (2006: 24%
(restated)) and 28% (2006: 44% (restated)) of the total
trade and other receivables was due from the group’s

largest debtor and the five largest debtors respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
balance sheet. The group has not provided any
financial guarantee which would expose the group to

credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash, readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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(c)

GESA

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Interest rate risk

BREBMAZEREERFESRE
EME TRETRHREERAZER
ME.UREEHEE 2 HEHEH

R(ERRESE) :
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA # %K) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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In respect of income-earning financial assets and

interest-bearing financial liabilities, the following table

indicates the effective interest rates at the balance sheet

date and the periods in which they reprice or the

maturity dates, if earlier:

& The group
“ELLF “EERE
2007 2006
ERFZE —FFUT ERFZE —FHUT
Effective One year Effective One year
interest rate or less interest rate or less
T T
$'000 $'000
REBAEHNERE Repricing dates for assets/
EE/ (Bf) (liabilities) which reprice
ZENEBAH before maturity
BOIEAREE Cash at bank and in hand 0.97% 47,133 0.96% 28,331
BEMBETEZRBES  Secured bank loans and overdrafts - - 5.53% (5,102)
47,133 23,229
TERIBAEFEE  Maturity dates for assets which
ZCEEZIHA do not reprice before maturity
FITFEK Deposits with banks 3.18% 43,173 3.14% 64,610
BEIHZES Held-to-maturity securities 4.45% 3,890 4.53% 3,891
47,063 68,501
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28. &M T A (#)
(c) M=ERmEpME (&)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

& A 7 The company
e -3 “ZERE
2007 2006
ERAE —-FFUT ERANE —SgUT
Effective One year Effective One year
interest rate or less interest rate or less
Fr T
$000 $000
REBHEHEEBZ Repricing dates for assets which
BEZEHNEEBAY reprice before maturity
RekhBFeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 4.06% 5,409 3.29% 5,090
TERFBAEFEE  Maturity dates for assets which
ZBEZEHA do not reprice before maturity
BRIBES Held-to-maturity securities 4.45% 3,890 4.53% 3,891

(d) HhEEE R

(d) Foreign currency risk

HARAEEZKEHD RS LLE T The group is not exposed to significant foreign currency
B BEUEHATESKAERERE - K risks because most of the transactions are denominated
EEMRUAEZTRBENE 2 RBAE in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”). The group is exposed
BT MR o HARTEEE THH to some foreign currency risk on purchases that are
EREHEBER BAEETEEE denominated in United States dollars (“USD”) and Euro
RED FERESHMEYMS © H (“EUR”). As USD is pegged to HKD, the management
RUZEEBIE2RZELREK - does not expect any significant movements in the USD/
EEERANERABRBE - HKD exchange rate. For other currencies like EUR,

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 £ & % #

since the volume of transactions denominated in these
currencies is not significant, management considers

the exposure to foreign currency risk to be low.
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(e) A¥E
FEEASRMEEREBEYREELR
—EELFR-ZZBERE=ZA=ZT—
ARAFEREREEARZE2HES
B -MBARZE# GBI &E
REEEERD SERZERZK K
ERSCATELIEEE -

29. R iE
@ R-ZBEELF=ZBF=+—BILERNE
KRR EEBEZESRBITERNEAE
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(e) Fair values
All significant financial assets and liabilities are carried
at amounts not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 March 2007 and 2006. Balances with
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and have no
fixed repayment terms. Given these terms, it is not

meaningful to disclose their fair values.

29. COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2007

not provided for in the financial statements were as

wT follows:
7N &
The group
—EELHF —EETRE
2007 2006
F T
$7000 $'000
254 Contracted for 438 689

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 &£ E & #
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29. &L (#)

(b)

R-ZZEZELE=A=+—RH REF
NRREEHETERAENS 2 KRER

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) At 31 March 2007, the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

ENRBELAEHOT : payable as follows:
rEE
The group
—EELHF —EERE
2007 2006
F F
$’000 $'000
— R Within 1 year 64,866 54,364
—FRERAFERN After 1 year but within 5 years 55,406 43,870
120,272 98,234

AEEEREEHERARETYE - =&
ERN-—RAOSHBH -—Z=F %7
ROMKENRBEMBRREN - &
ENREREREFHE  URBRS
SHEE -

BREXHEBEZEEEAESRS &
BAREXRERETHEMERL -
EESLERBEARBEIEE -
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The group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. These leases typically run for an
initial period of one to three years, with an option to
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually adjusted annually to reflect

market rentals.

In addition to the minimum lease payments disclosed
above, the group has commitments to make rental
payments at a percentage of turnover for certain leased

properties.
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30. A BEBEE

31.

RZZEELE=A=+—0 ' X2FHE
T2EREWNBLARAZREERR IR
TRE S 1,500,000 (ZFZT X F .
6,732,0007T) [ R {TE H ER ©

ARARUEEERER ZEXZLFE
AFRAEBER  WEAFRAUZEHE
B BARATEBE(EBSER)E39
RUREHERERZZAFE - -BL B
BERLEINFEMEBERUDIFETE -
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2007, guarantees given to banks by the
company in respect of mortgage loans and other banking
facilities extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries
amounted to $1,500,000 (2006: $6,732,000).

The guarantees were issued by the company at nil
consideration. The transactions were not at arm’s length,
and it is not possible to measure reliably the fair value of
these transactions in accordance with HKAS 39 had they
been at arm’s length. Accordingly the guarantees have not
been accounted for as financial liabilities and measured at

fair value.

BERBABALIXRS 31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
RS EREEMTABEEZRS R In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
HEEgN o AEBEFTLTIERBEBEALZ elsewhere in these financial statements, the group entered
5 into the following material related party transactions:
(a) EHEBALTZRS (@) Transactions with related companies
—EELHF —EETRE
2007 2006
F T
$'000 $'000
SEMEZHEE WA Rental income from sub-lease 960 292
REMEZHEEHA Rental income from investment property 420 420
EEEEescEeAX Rental expense for director’s quarter 600 600
MRABU EERAX Rental expense for commercial unit 415 114

HEBATT IR RARBED
BITNFREREZHEREE - K=
FFLE=AS+-BR-BEAE
SA=t+-B ARRBBATEH
ZARMBEY o

Rental fee income and expenses with related
companies were at terms mutually agreed by both
parties. There were no outstanding balances with
related companies as at 31 March 2007 and 31 March
2006.

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 &£ E & #
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31.

32.

33.

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BERXBEBAIXRS (£) 31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
by TEEBEAEME (b) Key management personnel remuneration
TEEBAEME (BEME7AHE Remuneration for key management personnel,
XNFARARBHTES Z2HE)MT ¢ including amounts paid to the company’s executive
directors as disclosed in note 7, is as follows:
—EZTLEF ZEERF
2007 2006
Fr T
$’000 $'000
% HIE 8 %8 A Short-term employee benefits 12,074 11,403
BEBRERRA Post-employment benefits 57 57
12,131 11,460
EE®BHF 32. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
[FEWEBR AR E bW ]F12,118,0008 Deposits of $12,118,000 included under “trade and other
TREECEFIEAFRBEEZ[H A receivables” have been reclassified as “other assets” under
EEINROUAREEAFEZE2NAER - & non-current assets to comply with the current year’s
B2 X TEERREBKZHEER presentation. The revised presentation reflects better the
HR nature and term of the balances.
RARRRERRAF 33. PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

R-ZBELFEZRA=Z+-—H ESRRL
SEZ2E8RARAREARERA LTS Super

Result Consultants Limited @ — 3 A 3 B 4
BAREEIMRLZAR - ZA L ER

RUBIMBEBH2MBERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 £ & % #

At 31 March 2007, the directors consider the parent and
ultimate controlling party of the group to be Super Result
Consultants Limited, which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial

statements available for public use.
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(a)

(b)

B E & & 2 B
FEESFYUEREABNEHRE
FEEEEERBDRETR © fif H R
FENR  EEZAWEERESE
ERTEEREEER FHRER] - &
REEXAREEABER LAER] - AR
ARBERERHEEERFENKH
MEREEGEREBSNER  BEEH
A TR EERSAINREERT
hEefE mErREENEZGE
MEBRBEERSZE -

FE W BR 3R 2 BB
REB(EBESFER) FE 365 @ il B &

WE R EEAEINEISHE] M
HEBBEUEEIRIEERE] - E
WHRAZHESEHER - UFGET
KEEHEREEKEENREE - &
WERRz2AREEELEFTFARREE
REBEREOUEEZRTHHERERN
ReE  -AEEANAFEREZEHN
BB EEREFEZMEE -

M EFEE

FEEEHSEREFEIN - BHE
HEBZRNEEEBHNEERNFE 2R
HE REREEHN WEFEZEK
HERESERGT ISR FE  BE
WMEFE BRTEBZTHESE
BERZHBERATMREMTAREZR -
REMH2EEETRELEES -
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34. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Note 28 contains information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to financial instruments. The group
believes the following accounting policies involve critical

judgements and estimates used in the preparation of the

financial statements.

(@)

(b)

()

Impairment of fixed assets

The group assesses annually whether fixed assets have
any indication of impairment in accordance with the
relevant accounting policies. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the assets would be
determined by reference to value in use and net selling
price. Value in use is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Due to inherent risk associated
with estimations in the timing and magnitude of the
future cash flows and net selling prices, the estimated
recoverable amount of the assets may be different from
its actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could
be affected by the accuracy of the estimations.

Impairment of trade receivables

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
trade receivables may not be recoverable, the assets
may be considered “impaired” and an impairment loss
may be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets”. The carrying amounts of trade
receivables are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. The recoverable amount of trade
receivables is the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return of
similar assets. The group uses all available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount.

Write down of inventories

The group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analysis, historical consumption trends and
management judgement. Based on this review, write
down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated
net realisable value. Due to changes in market trends,
actual consumption may be different from estimation
and profit or loss could be affected by accuracy of
this estimation.
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3B, BE-_EELtFE=ZA=+—HLEE 35. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS

EEMEILRERZERT ~ 8 EL
KRB zHUREEE
BEEZEUYRBXRTNEBEY  SBEHE
NECHEMSIAMBE - HBEARZE
ZEEBFT  FREARZREBRBE-ZZ
TtE=ZRA=1T-BLEFENBRER B
AEZEUBHRREM -

AEEMBEFERBZEMB - HBEL
RHZRERERAERADBE & - 2B
Bl FAEERE  RAZXFBE - #HE
EARHZEBUAEECEEXERDHK

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2007 and which have not been adopted

in these financial statements.

The group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial

application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of

MRBREARELEZAREETK them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the group’s
results of operations and financial position.
B Sh o T B 8 B A BE % B RS 3R R 1 I R AR In addition, the following developments may result in new

RIEFTHE or amended disclosures in the financial statements:
RTHBHE 2%
M zesr BEN

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BRMBREERN) E7H
HKFRS 7

TRIA RE

Financial instruments: disclosures

—2E2t¥-A-H
1 January 2007

(BEBETEN)E1E (BTX)
Amendments to HKAS 1

MBERRZZH BRAKE

Presentation of financial statements:

—EZ+F¥-fF—-H
1 January 2007

capital disclosures

ANNUAL REPORT 2007 £ & % #
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The following is a summary of the published results and assets

and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31

March 2007 prepared on the basis as set out in the notes below.

E RESULTS
BE=A=1T-HLFE
Year ended 31 March
ZEELFE —ZTTRF _ZTTHF _TTNF _TT=F
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(E35))
(restated)™
T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
EEH Turnover 352,217 311,617 292,124 227,186 218,203
FEE = Profit from operations 85,459 75,714 80,599 47,620 37,133
& KA Finance costs (365) (251) (505) (1,038 (1,507)
T REEY Net valuation gains/
REEWMEZ (losses) on land
fhEkE, and buildings and
(B &) FE investment properties 2,975 9,972 1,813 505 (2,340)
R % AR A Profit before taxation 88,069 85,435 81,907 47,087 33,286
BT 15 %t Income tax (9,815) (6,624) (6,150) 166 (307)
FRER Profit for the year 78,254 78,811 75,757 47,253 32,979
BRAF Earnings per share
=N Basic $0.28 $0.28 $0.27 $0.17 $0.12
s Diluted $0.27 $0.28 $0.27 T E A N/A $0.12
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INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS

EENRERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
=A=+-H
As at 31 March
—FFLF —PRRF -“TTRF —RRAF
2007 2006 2005 2004
(&%) (&3)2 (&%)
(restated)?  (restated)®  (restated)?
T T Fr T
$'000 $'000 $/000 $'000
EEE Fixed assets 182,464 135,644 112,274 92,193
Hih&EE Other assets 13,558 12,118 7,026 8,167
REFSHEE Deferred tax assets 4,112 4,617 4,276 3,756
REBEEFE Net current assets 159,387 154,273 141,116 122,744
EERRE Total assets less
EEHE current liabilities 359,521 306,652 264,692 226,860
k¥ RBEE Non-current liabilities (7,967) (5,946) (4,257) (31,901)
351,554 300,706 260,435 194,959
B% A< Share capital 2,821 2,820 2,818 2,805
& & Reserves 348,733 297,886 257,617 192,154
351,554 300,706 260,435 194,959
Kt &t Notes:

(1) AFE(EBEFTEHED) B 125 (KREFT)
[FAIERIZ2RE  AEER-_ZZMNFHIE
EFFSHEMIBER —EZ=F2HFE
fEF % -

2 EANERBEEFEZ-ZFTEAF=ZA=
T—BF£12,118000tEEH 2 EHEME
E-BAFE2HFRKEES  UELEHRA

;%o
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(1) In order to comply with Hong Kong Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 12 (revised) “Income taxes”, the group adopted
a new policy for deferred tax in 2004. Figures for the year 2003

have been adjusted.

(2)  Deposits of $12,118,000 as at 31 March 2006 previously included
in net current assets have been re-classified as other assets. For
comparison purpose, figures for the prior years have also been

reclassified.

LIMITED
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